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Apple Hospitality Two is a premier investment company
committed to providing maximum value for our shareholders.

Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. is a real estate investment trust (REIT) focused on the
upscale, extended-stay suite segment of the hotel industry. Our hotels operate
under the Residence Inn® by Marriott® and Homewood Suites® by Hilton brands,
the nation’s leading chains of upscale extended-stay hotels. Our focus is to
acquire high-quality hotels that generate attractive returns for our shareholders.
At the time of the printing of this report, our portfolio consisted of 66 hotels,
containing a total of 7,869 suites, diversified among 25 states.

Cover photos (left to right): Homewood Suites Atlanta Buckhead, GA; Homewood Suites Salt Lake City, UT; Residence Inn Seattle Redmond, WA
Photos above (left to right): Residence Inn Arcadia, CA; Homewood Suites Salt Lake City, UT; Residence Inn LaJolla, CA




Financlal Highlights

(In thousands, except per share and statistical data)

@@@F@tim% R@SUMS For the year ended December 31,

2004 2003

Total revenue $213,642 $195,806
Net income $ 6,449 $ 1,497
Net income per share $ 0.5 $ o.04
Modified funds from operations (FFO) @ $ 39,878 $ 36,675
Modified FFO per share $ o096 $ o0.89
Distributions declared per share $ o.90 $ 125
Weighted-average shares outstanding 41,728 41,421
Revenue per available room (RevPAR) $ 72 $ 67
B@&@n@@ Sh@@t @ata As of December 31, 2004 2003

Investment in hotels, net $636,206 $638,658
Total assets $664,604 $ 692,113
Shareholders’ equity $275,738 $308,920

(@) Modified funds from operations (FFO) is defined as net income (computed in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles - GAAP) excluding gains and losses from sales of depreciable property, plus depreciation, amortization,
and merger and debt extinguishment costs. The company considers modified FFO in evaluating property acquisitions and its
operating performance and believes that modified FFO should be considered along with, but not as an alternative to, net
income and cash flows as a measure of the company’s activities in accordance with GAAP. Modified FFO is not necessarily

indicative of cash available to fund cash needs.

The trademarks contained herein are registered trademarks. Residence Inn® by Marriott® and Marriott Rewards® are registered
trademarks of Marriott International, Inc. Homewood Suites® by Hilton is a registered trademark of Hilton Hospitality, Inc.

HHonors® is a registered trademark of Hitton Honors Worldwide L.L.C.

Apple Hospitality Two
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We are pleased to share with you our results of operations for the year 2004. During the
year, Apple Hospitality Two continued to focus its vision on adding shareholder value.

In doing so, we increased revenues over the prior year, continued our major capital
improvement efforts to complete renovations on 13 hotels, refinanced $125 million of
our debt, and implemented a dividend reinvestment program.

Our efforts are evident. Our hotel operations improved over the prior year with average
daily rate (ADR) growing to $95 from $91, and revenue per available room (RevPAR)
increasing 7.5 percent to $72. Overall occupancy averaged 76 percent.

Annual modified funds from operation (FFO) were $39.9 million, or $0.96 per share.
Shareholder dividends were distributed at an annual rate of $0.90 per share, representing
a nine percent return based on a $10 share price. The next payable date for dividends is
scheduled to occur on or about April 20, 2005,

The Company’s focus during the year was on driving internal growth. To improve our
hotels’ competitive positioning within their markets, we completed hotel renovations on
13 hotels in 2004, marking a total of 26 hotels renovated since the capital improvement
project began in 2001. Both guestrooms and gatehouses were enhanced and modernized,
and structural items such as roofing, siding and stairs were restored, These hotels were
completely redecorated and entirely revamped with upgrades, including new furniture
and fixtures. As a result of these renovations, the hotels have improved their Guest
Satisfaction Scores (GSS) and increased their rates.

In November, we refinanced the loan assumed at the August 2002, purchase of a portfolio
of hotels referred to as the Residence Inn Il partnership. The new loan, in the amount of
$135 million, reduced the Company’s interest rate from 8.85 percent to 6.88 percent.

Also in 2004, the Company implemented a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP). The plan
offers shareholders the opportunity to increase investment in the Company by purchasing
additional shares, free of brokerage fees, commissions or service charges. Shareholders
who participate in the DRIP elect to have the dividends on their current shares reinvested
for the purchase of additional shares. Shareholders who are interested in reinvesting
their dividends should contact their investment brokers.

Our hotels operate under the nation’s leading upscale extended-stay hotel brands. In
2004, both of our Homewood Suites® by Hilton and Residence Inn® by Marriott® brands

Annual Report 2004




received prestigious awards for their
exceptional service and quality.
Homewood Suites was voted the
number one upper upscale extended-
stay hotel chain in the U.S. in the
“2004 Business Travel News Top U.S.
Hotel Chain Survey,” marking the third
year the brand has received a top des-
ignation in this survey. For the second
quarter in a row and the fifth time
overall, the brand also ranked in the
third quarter of 2004 as the top hotel
chain of the extended-stay category by
the Market Metrix Hospitality Index?
a quarterly report surveying customer
satisfaction with hotel, airline and car
rental companies. Residence Inn was

\_ Glade M. Knight /' also honored by the Market Metrix

S

Hospitality Index® In August, the brand
was awarded the best hotel reservations website. We are also pleased to report
the personal achievement of one of our Residence Inn hotel managers. Raymond
Merle, the general manager of our Akron, Ohio, Residence Inn received Marriott’s
most coveted honor, the “). Willard Marriott Award of Excellence.” Selected from
more than 125,000 employees, Raymond has been a dedicated and inspiring
leader for more than 17 years.

At Apple Hospitality, our vision remains focused on creating the highest possible
value for our shareholders. We look forward to continuing that focus in 2005.
Thank you for investing with us.

Slncerely,

Glade M. }fght

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Residence Inn Seattle Redmond, WA
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At Apple Hospitality Two, our vision fs Tecused
on maximizing value for our sharel ﬂ@ﬂ”@”So Te
fulfill that vision, we have built a porifo.io of
high-quality hotels diversifiec among select
markets, and established clear strategies tc
ensure our hotels are performing at the highest
possible levels.

@]

Quality Portfolic

The first step in creating shareholder value is to invest in a quality portfolio of assets.
We have built a quality portfolio at Apple Hospitality Two. The hotels have been
prudently selected based on their history of solid performance and customer base

derived from a broad range of industries.

We have also selected hotels that operate under two of the nation’s best-performing
brands, Homewood Suites® by Hilton and Residence Inn® by Marriott® These award-
winning brands are leaders within the extended-stay lodging segment and are
aligned with two of the nation’s leading hotel franchises, Marriott and Hilton. These
franchises provide our hotels with a strong footing in the marketplace because of their
trusted names, national presence, high customer satisfaction and award-winning guest
reward programs. Apple Hospitality Two’s hotels enjoy the advantages of participating
in both the Marriott Rewards® program, the lodging industry’s largest frequent guest
program with over 20 million members worldwide, and HHonors? Hilton’s award-
winning guest reward program that provides members both hotel points and airline

miles for the same stay.

Apple Hesphalily Twe Annual Report 2004
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Select Markets

At Apple Hospitality Two, our 66 Hotels are located in 25 states within
growing markets and established metropolitan areas that have shown long
term stability. By diversifying our portfolio, we are able to generate attractive
returns on our investments while minimizing the investment risk that is

associated with reliance on only a few markets.

Clear Strategies

At Apple Hospitality Two, we have established clear strategies to ensure
the best performance of our hotels. Our strategies include continually
monitoring our hotels and maintaining strong relationships with their
on-site teams to better leverage the properties’ market positioning and
improve their value over the long term, Ultimately, our asset management
goal is to drive the performance of our hotels to the highest possible levels.
In 2004, our hotels enjoyed increases in average daily rate, revenue per

availabte room and house profit margins.

Apple Hospitality Two Annual Report 2004



66 hotels, 7,869 suites
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e Residence Inn® by Marriott® \‘\.
@ Apple owns more than one
property in the market
« Homewood Suites® by Hilton
® Apple owns more than one
property in the market
Residence Inn Birmingham
Residence Inn Montgomery
Residence Inn Arcadia
Residence Inn Bakersfield
Residence Inn Concord Pleasant Hill
Residence Inn Costa Mesa
Residence Inn Irvine
Residence Inn La Jolla
Residence Inn Long Beach
Residence Inn Placentia
Residence Inn San Ramon
Homewood Suites  Boulder
Residence Inn Boulder
Residence Inn Meriden
Residence Inn Boca Raton
Homewood Suites  Clearwater
Residence Inn Clearwater St. Petersburg
Residence Inn Jacksonville
Residence Inn Pensacola

Residence Inn
Homewood Suites
Residence Inn
Homewood Suites
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Homewood Suites
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Atlanta Airport Hapeville
Atlanta Buckhead
Atlanta Buckhead
Atlanta Cumberiand
Atlanta Cumberiand
Atlanta Dunwoody
Atlanta Peachtree

Residence Inn
Residence Inn

Residence Inn

Homewood Suites

Residence Inn
Residence Inn

Homewood Suites
Residence Inn
Residence Inn

Homewood Suites
Residence inn

Homewood Suites
Residence Inn
Residence Inn

Residence Inn

Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn

Chicago Deerfield
Chicago Lombard

Shreveport Bossier City

Baltimore BWI Airport

Boston Danvers
Boston Tewksbury

Detroit Warren
Kalamazoo
Southfield

<

Jackson
Jackson

St. Louis Chesterfield
St. Louis Chesterfield
St. Louis Galleria

Las Vegas

Santa Fe

Charlotte
Greensbhoro
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Residence Inn Akron

Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn

Homewood Suites

Residence Inn
Homewood Suites

Cincinnati Blue Ash
Cincinnati Sharonville
Cotumbus

Dayton North

Dayton South

Portiand Beaverton

Philadelphia Berwyn
Philadelphia Great Valiey

Residence Inn Columbia
Residence Inn Spartanburg
Residence Inn Memphis

Homewood Suites

Dallas Addison

Homewood Suites  Datlas Irving
Residence Inn Dallas lrving
Residence Inn Houston Clear Lake
Residence Inn Lubbock
Homewood Suites  Dallas Plano

Homewood Suites

Homewood Suites
Homewood Suites

Residence Inn

Salt Lake City Midvale

Richmond
Dulles international Airport

Seattle Redmond




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

Annual report pursuant to section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004

[] Transition report pursuant to section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 000-49748

APPLE HOSPITALITY TWO, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

VIRGINIA 54-2010305
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
814 E. Main Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(804) 344-8121

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the act:
None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12 (g) of the act:
Units (Each Unit is equal to one common share, no par value, and one Series A preferred share)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was

required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90
days. Yes No []

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the

Act). Yes No ]

Based upon the price at which the common equity for Apple Hospitality Two, Inc’s best efforts offering was last
sold through June 30, 2004, the aggregate market value of the voting common equity held by non-affiliates of the
registrant on such date was a total of $379,515,519. The Company does not have any non-voting common equity.

On March 1, 2005, there were approximately 40,442,459 common shares outstanding.
Documents Incorporated by Reference

The information required by Part III of this report, to the extent not set forth herein, is incorporated by reference to
the registrant’s definitive proxy statement for the 2005 annual meeting of shareholders to be held May 12, 2005.
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This Form 10-K includes references to certain trademarks or servicemarks. Residence Inn® by Marriott

trademark is the property of Marriott International, Inc. (“Marriott”). The Homewood Suites® trademark is
the property of Hilton Hotels Corporation (“Hilton™). For convenience, the applicable trademark or
servicemark symbol has been omitted but will be deemed to be included wherever the above-referenced

terms are used.




PART1

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Such statements
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors which may cause the actual results,
performance, or achievements of the Company to be materially different from future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, but are not limited
to, the ability of the Company to implement its acquisition strategy and operating strategy; the Company’s ability
to manage planned growth; changes in economic cycles and competition within the extended-stay hotel industry.
Although the Company believes that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements contained
herein are reasonable, any of the assumptions could be inaccurate, and therefore there can be no assurance that
such statements included in this Annual Report will prove to be accurate. In light of the significant uncertainties
inherent in the forward-looking statements included herein, the inclusion of such information should not be
regarded as a representation by the Company or any other person that the results or conditions described in such
statements or the objectives and plans of the Company will be achieved. In addition, the Company’s qualification
as a real estate investment trust involves the application of highly technical and complex provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code. Readers should carefully review the Company’s financial statements and the notes
thereto, as well as the risk factors described in the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Item 1. Business

Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. (the “Company”), a Virginia corporation, was formed on January 17, 2001, with the
first investor closing on May 1, 2001. The Company merged with Apple Suites, Inc., structured as a tax-fee
merger, on January 31, 2003 and results of Apple Suites operations are included in the Company’s results from
February 1, 2003. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated upon consolidation.

The Company is a real estate investment trust that owns extended-stay hotels. The REIT Modernization Act,
effective January 1, 2001, permits real estate investment trusts (“REIT”) to establish taxable businesses to
conduct certain previously disallowed business activities. The Company has wholly-owned taxable REIT
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Lessee”), which lease all of the Company’s hotels from wholly-owned qualified
REIT subsidiaries. The hotels are operated and managed by affiliates of either Marriott or Hilton under hotel
management agreements.

Website Access

The address of the Company’s Internet website is www.applehospitality.com. The Company makes available
through its Internet website its annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably practicable after the Company electronically files such
material with, or furnishes it to, the SEC.

Growth Strategies

The Company’s primary objective is to enhance shareholder value by increasing cash from operations and cash
available for distributions. The Company’s focus is on maximizing the internal growth of the Company’s
portfolio by selecting properties that have strong cash flow growth potential.

The Company seeks to increase operating cash flow and enhance its value through internal growth and
renovations. The Company’s internal growth strategy is to utilize its asset management expertise to improve the
quality of the Company’s hotels by renovating, redeveloping and thereby improving hotel revenue and
operational performance.



The Company believes that its completed and planned renovation and redevelopment activities will increase
revenue per available room (“REVPAR”) at the Company’s hotels. The Company is committed to fund a
percentage of gross revenue per month for certain capital expenditures for periodic replacement or refurbishment
of furniture, fixtures and equipment. The Company has approximately $5.1 million held in escrow for future
furniture, fixture and equipment purchases at December 31, 2004. During 2003, the Company began a major
renovation program for its hotels to enhance revenue per available room. This program concluded in the middle
of 2004. Total capital expenditures in the program were approximately $56 million and included 26 hotels. The
Company will continue to selectively renovate hotels as the return on investment warrants.

The Company continuously monitors its portfolio and will, where appropriate, selectively acquire or dispose of
properties based on specific market conditions.

Financing

Substantially all of the Company’s hotels are encumbered by mortgage debt. The Company’s bylaws require
board of director approval for debt above certain levels. Debt levels are reviewed quarterly by the board to ensure
reasonableness in relation to the Company’s assets. In November 2004, the Company successfully refinanced
$125 million of its secured debt, reducing the refinanced debt’s fixed interest rate from 8.85% to 6.88% per year.

Industry and Competition

The Company believes that the hotel industry is highly competitive. Each of the Company’s hotels is located in a
developed area that includes other hotels and competes for guests primarily with other extended-stay hotels in its
immediate vicinity and secondarily with other hotels in its geographic market. An increase in the number of
competitive hotels in a particular area could have a material adverse effect on the occupancy, average daily rate
(“ADR”) and REVPAR of the Company’s hotels in that area. The Company believes that brand recognition,
location, price and quality (of both the hotel and the services provided) are the principal competitive factors
affecting its hotels. Additionally, general economic conditions in a particular market or nationally can impact the
performance of the hotels.

Hotel Operating Performance

The Company owns 49 Residence Inn by Marriott hotels, consisting of 5,947 suites, and 17 Homewood Suites by
Hilton hotels, consisting of 1,922 suites. Total revenues for these hotels totaled $213.6 million, $195.8 million
and $106.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. For those same periods,
the hotels achieved average occupancy of 76%, 74% and 78%, ADR of $95, $91 and $92 and REVPAR of $72,
$67 and $71, respectively.

Franchise and Management Agreements
Residence Inn Hotels

The Company’s Residence Inn hotels are subject to management agreements under which Residence Inn by
Marriott, Inc. (the “Manager””) manages the hotels, generally for an initial term of 15 to 20 years with renewal
terms at the option of the Manager of up to an additional 50 years. The agreements generally provide for payment
of base management fees, which are calculated annually as a percentage of sales, and incentive management fees
over a priority return (as defined in the management agreements). Incentive management fees (IMF) are currently
payable only if and to the extent there is sufficient cash flow from the hotels after consideration of qualifying
debt service and after consideration to a priority return on investment, including property improvements.
Amounts not currently payable are deferred and are payable in future years only if and to the extent there is
sufficient cash flow from future operations or upon sale or refinancing of the hotels after consideration to a
priority return to the Company (as defined in the management agreements), which is generally 12%. In the event
of early termination of the management agreements, the Manager will receive additional fees based on the
unexpired term and expected future base and incentive management fees. The Company has the option to
terminate the management agreements if specified performance thresholds are not satisfied.

4




Homewood Suites Hotels

The Company’s 17 Homewood Suites hotels are managed by Promus Hotels, Inc. (“Promus™), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Hilton under the terms of separate management agreements, as part of the Homewood Suites by
Hilton franchise. The initial term is generally 15 years with no option to renew; however, two hotel properties in
this portfolio have renewal options of two five year periods each. The Company has the option to terminate the
management agreements if specified performance thresholds are not satisfied.

Promus manages day-to-day operations of the Company’s Homewood Suites hotels. Promus charges fees for this
function, which are calculated as a percentage of revenue. Incentive management fees are calculated, for certain
properties, on the basis of operating profit of the hotels. Promus also charges a fee, calculated as a percentage of
suite revenue, for franchise licenses to operate as a Homewood Suites by Hilton and to participate in its
reservation system.

Related Parties

The Company has significant transactions with related parties. These transactions cannot be construed to be
arm’s length and the results of the Company’s operations could be different if these transactions were conducted
with non-related parties.

The Company, through a wholly owned subsidiary, has an advisory agreement with Apple Hospitality Five
Advisors, Inc., (AFA), whereby the Company receives advisory fee revenue equal to 0.1% to 0.25% of total
equity contributions received by Apple Hospitality Five, Inc., plus certain reimbursable expenses in exchange for
Company personnel performing advisory and real estate acquisition due diligence for Apple Hospitality Five,
Inc. AFA is 100% owned by Glade M. Knight, the Company’s Chairman and CEO.

The Company also provides support services to Apple Six Advisors, Inc. (A6A), Apple Hospitality Five Inc., and
Apple REIT Six, Inc. A6A provides day to day advisory and real estate due diligence services to Apple REIT
Six, Inc. A6A is 100% owned by Mr. Knight. Each of these companies has agreed to reimburse the Company for
its costs in providing these services. Mr. Knight is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Apple Hospitality
Five, Inc. and Apple REIT Six, Inc. Additionally, the members of the Company’s Board of Directors are the
same as the members of the Board of Directors for Apple Hospitality Five, Inc. and Apple REIT Six, Inc.

Employees

During 2004, all employees involved in the day-to-day operation of the Company’s hotels were employed by the
management companies engaged pursuant to the hotel management agreements. At December 31, 2004, the
Company had 24 employees.

Environmental Matters

In connection with each of the Company’s hotel acquisitions, the Company obtains a Phase I Environmental
Report and such additional environmental reports and surveys as are necessitated by such preliminary report.
Based on such reports, the Company is not aware of any environmental situations requiring remediation at its
properties, which have not been or are not currently being remediated as necessary. No material remediation
costs have or are expected to occur.

Item 2. Properties

As of December 31, 2004, the Company owned 49 Residence Inn by Marriott hotels comprised of 5,947 suites
and 17 Homewood Suites by Hilton hotels comprised of 1,922 suites for a total of 66 hotels comprised of 7,869
suites. The hotels are located in various states. The following table includes the location of each hotel, the date of
construction, the date acquired, encumbrances, initial acquisition cost, gross carrying value and the number of
suites of each hotel.



24! sIKGE-€  TOOT UdreW ¥861 (159) 16S°L 8.8 STL'y 886°1 899'7 oot eig10ar) ‘Apoomun(g
601 SIK6E - ¢ £00T Arenuef 8661 (878) LT8'LI $0€ P01°S1 61¥°C §8TL Tt eluidA ‘safing
9L 'SIKGE~¢ €00z Arenuer 0661 (0sH) 66£°S 8b¢ €Sy 80¢ 6Lg’T T ueSIyoIN “Nona(
8C1 sIKgE—¢  7OOZISnSny 6861 (zz6) P11°01 L00T £99°9 W'l oor'g o AR STOUI[[ ‘pjou49Qd
96 SIKGE—€  TOOT YoreAl G861 (S8L) 6LLD £86°1 £SEP 1944 6s6c Crrrrrs olyQ ‘Yinog uorke(]
9 sk gE—¢  TOOT UIBI L861 (€Le) 50 €61 6£5°T 0ze LOV'L e owjQ ‘yuoN uoieq
66 sk 6g —¢ €00 Aenuef L661 (1z¢) L809 LyE 61T'¢ 12 6LET e SEX3] ‘our|d/se|[eC
9¢l SIK6E—¢  £00C Arenuep 0661 (6LL) 98L°C1 W 656 TLL'T yep's SeX3], ‘seurjo)) sese[eq
(1741 s1K6g—¢ €007 Arenuef 0661 (€oL) 89601 86¢ 1168 650°T $ET'S T Sexa, ‘UOSIPPY/se[ed
0zl SIK6E - ¢ 1007 Joquindes 6861 (ss0°1) F11°01 9bb 1LT°8 L6E°1 1S 4 sexa ‘sejjeq
ocl SIK6E—€  TOOT Yo L861 (06%) 8909 805 9'c 8€6°1 ote'c oot 131090 ‘puelrAqUIND
44! SIKGE—€  TOOT YoreW 9861 (Z$8) 80L€T 011°¢ $78°9 SLL'E SLTL e BULIOJI[E)) ‘BSAIN BISOD)
9T1 SIK6E —¢ 1007 Pquadas 6861 re' D) 970°cT $8T°1 $08°91 LE6'Y 861°9 oo BILIOJI[ED) ‘PIOIUO)
96 S1ILGE—¢  TOOT YMBN S861 (6c1) 8Y9't 08t LTSE 19 869°1 AR OO ‘YHON snquinio)
8Tl SIK6g—¢ 700z sndny 8861 (z8%) wr's $9T'T TEL'S SLy 08¢t BUIJOIED) YINOS ‘BIQUIN{OD)
83 s1L66—¢  T00T ISNENY 9861 @y $86°9 096°1 99T°¢ 65L°1 [0 7 S BPLIOJ “IIEMIEI]D)
Tl SIKGE- ¢ €007 Arenuef 8661 (579) 6711 vED 801°8 L89'T 60L'C oottt BPLIO{ ‘Jo)RMIea])
811 SIK g — € 1007 Bquandog 0661 (ovL) Yr'L 6L LY'S €LST 8OL'y e oWy ‘Mmeutdur)
YOI1 SIKGE— € T00T YoreW 9861 (9Lp) $TSS L68 08t'c 8Y1°1 91L'T LINOSSTIA] ‘PIa1JI9ISAY)
16 s1kgg—¢  TOOT sndny 8861 (sz€) 80£0 ] 016°¢ L6ET - e eur[ore)) YUoN ‘3NoLIey)
9¢1 s1Kgg—¢€  TOOT YoreIN L861 (gc0) ¥96°6 994°T L9TY 1€2°¢ L'y o e131090) ‘peayong
8Tl SIKGE—¢  T00T Yorew 9861 (90%'1) SETEl 81S°E 8¢S°8 6L1°1 (1742 S 0pe10[0)) ‘pinog
48 sk gg~¢ €007 Arenuef 1661 ¥06) 61691 65S 8T $TY'E 8001 ot opeIo[0)) ‘1apjnog
96 SIK6E—¢ ooz Isndny 6861 OLL) 6618 LT PLL'Y €61°1 (17440 SHOSIYORSSEN ‘U0ISOg
0FT sik6g — € 1007 PRquardes 6861 (685D 891°61 1€L°1 0€L°T1 LOLY $L9°9 SHASRYOLSSE ‘UOISOg
0zl sIA6e—¢ 00T SNy 8861 (Lgg) TS I 1L8'C 09¢'1 0SL'E e BPLIOL] ‘UOIRY BOOY
8Tl sIKgE—¢ 700 Isndny 9861 wLs) 9T8°L 0ST'T 6vE'y LTT'T €LS'S e BWILqR[Y ‘WeySururg
Lyl s1IK6g — ¢ €00g Amenuef 8661 (901°1) 69°L1 8€S £56°61 109'1 $9$°8 oo pusjATey ‘asowinegq
vIt SIK6E —¢ 1007 1oquandag 0661 (S0 1) LLLOL ove'l LOS L 0L8't pIg8'e oot rIIOJI[E)) ‘PRYSIMeY
06 S1IK6g—¢ €007 Arenuef 0661 (90%) P£6° (493 629°¢ €56 $99'C " e131090) ‘SonydeI/RIMENY
74! S1IK6E—¢€ €00z Arenuef 0661 (gL L8I°1 ] L9€ 8198 07T S’y eI81090) ‘pueISqUIN)/RIUENY
%6 SIKGE—€ €007 Arenuer L661 (80L) I¥8°€l 981 L80°6 89S*P 00S's e v131030) ‘praIng RIL)Y
9T1 s1L g — € 100T IBquaideg 0661 (6LT°T) 09¢€°€T Al 09¢°01 LSLT L6 e ei1g1000) ‘BlUENY
(1741 sikgg—¢  TOOZ wndny 6861 (806) S8L°01 121°C 08€9 ¥8T°T (114:2° vIwIoJI[E) ‘e1pedlY
Tt sihgg—¢  Z00T wndny L861 (669) $ 6099 $ LYETS $99°t §  L6S $ 09t's $ o ‘vonjy
mvamu-m .uo # u.u_\— vv.—_=vu< =O_au-.-.5m=emv .uo.—nvﬁ .UU< wmcmv mmoho m—»%r.-rm w% .QE— m—ﬁh.ﬁ\.wﬂ_m —u—-ﬁ\m mwu—-.w.:u—::u:m— :o_ﬁnmhumwﬁ
sqemaadaq aeq Joaeq 1201 Spid
pazipende) 150 [enu]
Apuanbasqng

(spuesnoy) ur siefjoQq)
P00T ‘1€ JPqUdI( Jo SV
uonepdada( pajemunddy pue e)sy [Bay
I I INAEHIS




698°L (1€€°76)$  LES'889% L8ISLS PSTYLYS  960'6E1$  TSLL9ES
94! K6 —¢ €007 Arenuer 0002 (igs) S00°zI v61 TIL'G 660°C SLS'y it LINOSSIAl SIN0 1§
88 SIK6g—€ 00T wndny S861 (¢82) L6SE 18 816°C 865 - e eutjore)) pnog ‘dinquenedg
24! SIKGE—€  T00T Yo L861 (L£9) vrL'9 LET'T 698°¢ 8EL'T 89Ty oot ue3IydI ‘plRYYINOG
L SIL6E—€  Z00T 1sndny £861 (ov2) PH8°T € £05°T 867 050y * eueisinoOT] ‘LodoAdlyg
24! SIK6E-¢  T0OT YoM $861 Leo'n) 829'6 15L°¢ 06L°€ L80°T (1173 T OO ‘df|iauoreys
0z1 SIK6E—¢ 00T sndny 9861 (62r) $SE9 #01 ov8'y L] 0508 e OJIX3]] MIN ‘3 EIURS
901 S1A 6¢— ¢ 100T Jaquisidog 6861 (L09'1) 1Z+°61 et sl i 1S A S BILIOJI[E)) ‘UOWRy Ueg
86 SIK6E—¢  £00g Arenuef 9661 (€9v) 718 $6T wi‘s LLE 6LET oot yein ‘AND e Ifes
€Tl SIKGE—¢ €007 Atenuer 8661 (szL) 112°01 93¢ SE0'6 064 0gl°s o BIUIFIIA ‘PUOWILYILY
081 SIKGE—§ €00 Arenuep 0661 (LLS'T) LEY'PE $Ti 9ELLT LLLD 02 203 uojBuryse | ‘puowipay
od | sk gE—¢ €007 Arenuef 8661 6z1) FSO°I 1 ¥ST SOLL $60°¢ X 2 u05210 ‘puelod
zrl SIK6E—€ 00T sndny 8861 (zed) £91°01 £01°C £99'% LB6E'E 069'L oo BIWIOJI[ED) ‘BNUADR]
€Tl SIK6E—¢ €00z Arenuer 8661 (SLO'1) S61'91 01T 68791 - 0os’s erueAAsuuag ‘uIAEN/eIdIapRIYg
88 SIKGE—€ 00T sndny 8861 678) 96 102°T 059°S S6E°1 6L6'S vluea|Asuuad ‘erydiapeliug
¥9 SIKGE—~¢€  700Z snEny €861 (1vL) 061y LSS‘T L6TT 9¢€ (050 EpUO[ ‘BJOOBSUd]
¥6 SIK6E— ¢ 1007 Jequdndag 0661 (999) 629 20€ SZ0°¢ $96 213/ eureqey ‘K1owouopn
901 'SIK6E— ¢ 100T Jquardag 6861 @worn 06L°6 869 606 - l6Ty e J021IIULOY) “UIPLISJA
SOl SIKGE—¢€ 200 sndny 9861 (s6¢©) R01°L Sig SSL'Y 8€0°C SECT e 99ssauua |, ‘siyduapy
08 SIKGE—¢ 00T sndny 9861 (1747)] €19y 6v¥°1 PSLT ol (1] AR SeXq, o0qqn’]
91T SIKEE—€  TOOT Yore 1861 amrn 60561 L8S L6611 STE'L </ & A elwogEe) ‘yorag Suo
24! S1K6E—€  TOOT YR L861] (900°1) SEv'L 625 ovL'S 9911 8ET'S e SIoul|[] ‘prequio]
61 s1K6g—¢  TOOT sndny 6861 (969) 66T°¢1 828 98L°8 $89°¢ X 1/ epRAdN ‘SeSap se]
88T S1IL6E—€  TOOT Uore 9861 6LED) 017'9¢ 101°L Pe11 SST'LY 9061 ot BILIOJI[RD) ‘BJjOf BT
€8 SIKGE—€ 700 Isn3ny 6861 (13 0L9°S 19% 968°¢ £1€°1 8e6'c Tt EpLIO[ ‘OOZBWE[EY
Tl sIK6E~¢  zOOZ IsnSny 9861 (L09) £0CL 9€9°C 100y 99¢ (975 2N BPUO[ ‘d][IAu0SyOR[
0zl sk 6g—¢€  TO0Z sndny 9861 (668) orI'L 62T SzIy 98L 09¢°€ * o+ 1ddississia ‘uosyoe(
16 SIK6E—¢  £00T Arenuef L661 (sz) S05'6 LEE 1L7'8 L68 CER'T it 1ddissSISSIA ‘HosyoRf
41| 'SIK6E—¢ 200 sndny 6861 rv6) 6S1°11 907'T 6409 $06°C (1194 SR BIWIOJITE)) ‘BUIAI]
oll SIKG6E € 100C Pquandeg 0661 91°1) LTI 111 £06°8 096 89Ly oottt SEX, ‘U0ISNOH
- SIAGE—€ €007 Arenuer 0S61 (622) 296 85 9L 8¢l - e PIUII A “PUOWIYINY—IOLYJ(O) SWOH
1| sIKgE—¢ ooz snSny L861 (6Lp) TEL9 € 1S 8161 SL8'Y RUI[OIE) YLION ‘010QSUIID
49! S1L6E - € TOOT UOIBIN 9861 (oL ¥6L'8 oLzl 1299 0L6'] 215 T LINOSSIA ‘BLIB[[ED)
$aINg JO # Ay paizmmboy  uopdnasuo) -daada( 150D ARAA ¥ du] FRA4/opig  pue|  SdUBIqUINDdUY uondiLsaQq

qenrdaq ae( Jo areq 0y $S04%) [€)0], ‘3pig
pazinde) 150 [eniu]
Appusnbasqng

(spuesnoy) ui s1efjoq)
P0OT ‘I€ 2quIBdR( JO SV
uonenIda( pIjenuWINIdY pue Ae)sy [BAY
I A1NAIHDS



Investment in hotels at December 31, 2004, consisted of the following:

Land . ..o $139,110,760
Building and improvements . ... ..... .. ... 493,678,033
Fumniture, fixtures and equipment .. ........... ittt 55,748,667
TOtal . e e e 688,537,460
Less: accumulated depreciation ............. ... i (52,330,994)
Investments N hotel, MEL . ... .. o e e $636,206,466

For additional information about the Company’s properties, refer to Item 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is not presently subject to any material litigation nor, to its knowledge, is any litigation threatened

against the Company or any of its properties, other than routine actions arising in the ordinary course of business,
some of which are expected to be covered by liability insurance and all of which collectively are not expected to

have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business or financial condition or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.




PART II

Item 5. Market For Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Common Shares

There is currently no established public market in which the Company’s common shares are traded. The per
share estimated market value shall be deemed to be the offering price of the shares, which is currently $10.00 per
share. This valuation is supported by the fact that the Company is currently selling shares to the public at a price
of $10.00 per share through its Dividend Reinvestment Plan, the Company is repurchasing shares at $10.00 from
shareholders and the Company has not realized any decrease in the value of its assets. On December 31, 2004,
there were approximately 11,205 beneficial shareholders of the Company’s common shares.

Distributions totaling $37,601,379, $54,243,300 and $17,330,704 were paid to the common shareholders and
Series C convertible shareholders during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Distributions were paid in an
amount of $0.90, $1.50 and $1.00 per share for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 respectively.
The $1.50 per share in 2003 includes a special distribution of approximately $.50 associated with the Company’s
merger with Apple Suites, Inc. Currently the Company pays a distribution on a quarterly basis, and for the last
two quarters of 2004 the distribution was at a rate of $0.20 per share. The timing and amounts of distributions to
shareholders are within the discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors. Future distributions will depend on
the Company’s results of operations, cash flow from operations, economic conditions and other factors such as
working capital and capital expenditure requirements, as well as requirements under federal income tax
provisions for qualification as a REIT.

Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan and Incentive Plan

The Company’s board of directors has adopted and the Company’s shareholders have approved a Non-Employee
Directors Stock Option Plan and an Incentive Plan. The options issued under each plan convert to Units. Each
Unit is equal to one common share and one Series A Preferred share of the Company. As of December 31, 2004,
there were 155,192 options outstanding.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

During the first quarter of 2004, the Company instituted a dividend reinvestment plan. The purpose of the plan is
to provide the Company’s shareholders with a convenient and inexpensive way to increase their investment in the
Company by reinvesting their dividends to purchase additional Units. As of December 31, 2004, 680,751 Units
have been issued under the dividend reinvestment plan, representing $6.8 million in proceeds to the Company.

Share Redemption Program

The Company has instituted a share redemption program to provide its shareholders who have held their Units
for at least one year with the benefit of limited interim liquidity, by presenting for redemption all or any portion
of their Units at any time and in accordance with certain procedures. Once this time limitation has been met, the
Company may, subject to certain conditions and limitations, redeem the Units presented for redemption for cash,
to the extent that the Company has sufficient funds available to fund the redemption. If Units are held for the
required one-year period, the Units may be redeemed for a purchase price equal to the lesser of: (1) $10.00 per
unit; or (2) the purchase price per Unit that was actually paid for the Units. The board of directors reserves the
right, in its sole discretion, at any time and from time to time, to waive the one-year holding period, reject any
request for redemption, change the purchase price for redemptions or otherwise amend the terms of, suspend, or
terminate the share redemption program. Redemption of units, when requested, will be made quarterly on a first-
come, first-served basis. Prior to the implementation of the Dividend Reinvestment Plan in the first quarter of
2004, the redemptions were funded as part of the Company’s Additional Share Option Plan. Funding for the
redemption of Units will come from the proceeds the Company receives from the sale of Units under its dividend
reinvestment plan. The Company’s board of directors, in its sole discretion, may choose to suspend or terminate
the share redemption program or reduce the number of Units purchased under the share redemption program if it
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determines the funds otherwise available to fund the share redemption program are needed for other purposes.
During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company redeemed approximately $8.8 million, representing
approximately 882,773 Units.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
(a) (b) (c) d)

Total Number of  Maximum Number
Units Purchased as  of Units that May

Total Number Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased
of Units Average Price Paid  Announced Plans  Under the Plans or
Period Purchased per Unit or Programs Programs
October2004 ........ ... ... ... .... 262,834 $9.89 1,752,001 1)

(1) The maximum number of Units that may be redeemed in the current calendar year is three percent (3.0%) of
the weighted average number of Units outstanding at the end of the previous calendar year.

Preferred Shares

The Company’s articles of incorporation authorize issuance of up to 15 million additional preferred shares. No
preferred shares other than the Series A preferred shares and the Series B convertible preferred shares (discussed
above) have been issued. The Company believes that the authorization to issue additional preferred shares benefits
the Company and its shareholders by permitting flexibility in financing additional growth, giving the Company
additional financing options in corporate planning and in responding to developments in business, including
financing of additional acquisitions and other general corporate purposes. Having authorized preferred shares
available for issuance in the future gives the Company the ability to respond to future developments and allows
preferred shares to be issued without the expense and delay of a special shareholders’ meeting. At present, the
Company has no specific financing or acquisition plans involving the issuance of additional preferred shares and
the Company does not propose to fix the characteristics of any series of preferred shares in anticipation of issuing
preferred shares other than the Series A preferred shares and Series C convertible preferred shares. The Company
cannot now predict whether or to what extent, if any, additional preferred shares will be used or if so used what
the characteristics of a particular series may be. The voting rights and rights to distributions of the holders of
common shares will be subject to the prior rights of the holders of any subsequently-issued preferred shares.
Unless otherwise required by applicable law or regulation, the preferred shares would be issuable without further
authorization by holders of the common shares and on such terms and for such consideration as may be
determined by the board of directors. The preferred shares could be issued in one or more series having varying
voting rights, redemption and conversion features, distribution (including liquidating distribution) rights and
preferences, and other rights, including rights of approval of specified transactions. A series of preferred shares
could be given rights that are superior to rights of holders of common shares and a series having preferential
distribution rights could limit common share distributions and reduce the amount holders of common shares would
otherwise receive on dissolution.

Valuation of Real Estate Assets

The Company continually monitors events and changes in circumstances that could indicate that the carrying
amounts of the real estate, both operating properties and properties under construction, in which it has an
ownership interest, may not be recoverable. When indicators of potential impairment are present which indicate
that the carrying amounts of real estate may not be recoverable, the Company assesses the recoverability of these
assets by determining whether the carrying value will be recovered through the undiscounted future operating
cash flows expected from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. In the event that such expected
undiscounted future cash flows do not exceed the carrying value, an impairment loss is recorded. To date, the
Company has not recorded any impairment losses.

Projections of expected future cash flows require estimates of future market rental income amounts subsequent to
the expiration of current lease agreements, property operating expenses, discount rates, the number of months it
takes to re-lease the property and the number of years that property is held for investment, among other factors.
The use of inappropriate assumptions in the future cash flow analysis would result in an incorrect assessment of
the property’s future cash flows and fair value, and could result in the misstatement of the carrying value of real
estate and net income.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth selected financial data for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 and
the period from January 17, 2001 through December 31, 2001. Certain data has been derived from the Company’s
audited financial statements and notes thereto. This data should be read in conjunction with Item 7, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations, and Item 15(a), the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Notes thereto, appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

For the period
For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended January 17, 2(‘})01 through
(in thousands except per share and statistical data) December 31,2004 December 31,2003 December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001 (c)
Revenues:
Suite revenue . .........oo v, $207,735 $189,600 $102,896 $ 10,022
Otherrevenue ...............ccvvuuininin.. 5,907 6,206 3,324 415
Totalrevenue ............c.cciiiineninen... 213,642 195,806 106,220 10,437
Expenses:
Hotelexpenses . ...........ccoviiineennn., 128,801 119,715 59,161 5,625
Taxes, insurance andother .................. 15,066 12,763 6,578 553
General and administrative . ................. 2,505 1,948 1,943 491
Depreciation ........... oo 24,626 19,264 7,562 1,085
Mergercosts ........... it —_— 15,914 — —
Debt extinguishment costs . .. ................ 8,803 — — —
Interest and other expenses,net . .............. 27,392 24,705 12,109 (634)
Total expenses ............c.c.oviinniinn.... 207,193 194,309 87,353 7,120
NEetiNCOME .ttt eie e $ 6,449 $ 1,497 $ 18,867 $ 3,317
Per Share
Eamings per common share ................. $ 015 $ 004 $ 088 $ 0.52
Distributions paid to common shareholders . . ... $ 090 $ 150 $§ 100 $§ 050
Weighted-average shares outstanding - basic and
diluted ............ .. .. 41,728 41,421 21,557 6,334
Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cashequivalents . .................. $ 13,118 $ 17,296 $125,522 $ 15,469
Investmentinhotels,net .................... $636,206 $638,658 $388,034 $ 121,078
Total @SSELS .. vvvit i $664,604 $692,113 $557,754 $ 178,381
Notes payable-secured . ..................... $372,762 $362,763 $269,297 $ 52874
Shareholders’ equity ....................... $275,738 $308,920 $262,982 $ 120,461
Net book value pershare .................... $ 661 $ 737 $ 872 $ 8.66
Other Data
Cash flow from:
Operating activities .................... $ 20,367 $ 35,923 $ 24,003 $ 4,694
Investing activities .. ................... $ (2,239) $(71,682) $(28,257) $(108,918)
Financing activities .................... $(22,306) $(72,467) $114,307 $ 119,693
Number of hotels owned at end of period . ...... 66 66 48 10
Average Daily Rate (ADR)Y (@) ............... $ 95 $ 91 $ 92 $ 102
Occupancy . . ......ouvvieiiian .. 76% 74% 78% 76%
Revenue Per Available Room (REVPAR) (b) ... $ 72 $ 67 $ 71 $ 78

(a) Suite revenue divided by number of rooms sold.
(b) ADR multiplied by occupancy.
(c) The Company was formed on January 17, 2001 and commenced operations in September 2001.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This annual report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Such Statements
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors which may cause the actual results,
performance, or achievements of the Company to be materially different from future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, but are not limited
to, the ability of the Company to implement its acquisition strategy and operating strategy; the Company’s ability
to manage planned growth; changes in economic cycles and competition within the extended-stay hotel industry.
Although the Company believes that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements contained
herein are reasonable, any of the assumptions could be inaccurate, and therefore there can be no assurance that
such statements included in this annual report will prove to be accurate. In light of the significant uncertainties
inherent in the forward-looking statements included herein, the inclusion of such information should not be
regarded as a representation by the Company or any other person that the results or conditions described in such
statements or the objectives and plans of the Company will be achieved. In addition, the Company’s qualification
as a real estate investment trust involves the application of highly technical and complex provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code. Readers should carefully review the Company’s financial statements and the notes
thereto, as well as the risk factors described in the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Overview

The Company is a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) that owns upscale, extended-stay hotels. The Company
was formed on January 17, 2001, with the first investor closing commencing on May 1, 2001. The Company
owns 66 hotels within different markets in the United States. The hotels were acquired in five portfolios; 10
hotels were acquired in September 2001, 15 were acquired in March 2002, 23 were acquired in August 2002, one
was acquired in January 2003, and 17 were acquired on January 31, 2003. The performance of the Company’s
hotels can be influenced by many factors, including local hotel competition, local and national economic
conditions and the performance of the individual managers assigned to our hotels. In evaluating financial
condition and operating performance, the Company focuses on revenue measurements such as occupancy,
average daily rate and revenue per available room and expenses such as hotel operating expenses, general and
administrative expenses and other expenses described below.

During the first quarter of 2004, the Company continued to experience the effects of economic weakness in some
of its markets and the effects of closing rooms to complete its major renovation project for many of its hotels. As
a result, the Company’s financial results were lower than the same period in 2003. During the remainder of 2004,
the Company began to see improved economic conditions in some of its markets, and it substantially completed
its major renovation program. As a result, the Company’s operating results for the year ended December 31,
2004 exceeded the same period in 2003. Although the Company believes operating results will continue to
improve in 2005, there can be no assurance such growth will be achieved.

Year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

Percentage Percentage Percent
(in thousands, except statistical information) 2004 of revenue 2003 of revenue  change
Total revenues . .. ... tn it e $213,642 100% $195,806 100% 9%
Hotel direct expenses ............covviiiiennon. 128,801 60% 119,715 61% 8%
Taxes, insurance and other expense ................. 15,066 7% 12,763 7% 18%
General and administrative . ..., . 2,505 1% 1,948 1% 29%
Depreciation . .........couiiiiiiiiiiiii 24,626 19,264 28%
INtETESt EXPENSE . ..ttt it i 27,774 25,546 9%
ADR $ 95 $ 91 4%
OCCUPANCY .« v ittt i 76% 74% 3%
RevPar .. ... . $ 72 $ 67 7%




Hotels Owned

The Company owns 66 hotels, with a total of 7,869 suites. Of the Company’s 66 hotels, 49 are Residence Inn by
Marriott properties consisting of 5,947 suites, and 17 are Homewood Suites by Hilton consisting of 1,922 suites.

The following table summarizes the locations, brands, acquisition dates and number of suites of the hotels owned
on December 31, 2004:

Date

% State Franchise/Brand Acquired # of Suites
Birmingham ................ Alabama Residence Inn August 2002 128
Montgomery ................ Alabama Residence Inn September 2001 94
Arcadia .................... California Residence Inn August 2002 120
Bakersfield ................. California Residence Inn September 2001 114
Concord . ................... California Residence Inn September 2001 126
CostaMesa ................. California Residence Inn March 2002 144
Irvine ......... .. ... ..., California Residence Inn August 2002 112
LalJolla .................... California Residence Inn March 2002 288
LongBeach ................. California Residence Inn March 2002 216
Placentia ................... California Residence Inn August 2002 112
SanRamon ................. California Residence Inn September 2001 106
Boulder ......... ... ... ... Colorado Homewood Suites  January 2003 112
Boulder .................... Colorado Residence Inn March 2002 128
Meriden .................... Connecticut Residence Inn September 2001 106
Clearwater .................. Florida Homewood Suites  January 2003 112
BocaRaton ................. Florida Residence Inn August 2002 120
Clearwater .................. Florida Residence Inn August 2002 88
Jacksonville ................. Florida Residence Inn August 2002 112
Kalamazoo ................. Florida Residence Inn August 2002 83
Pensacola ................... Florida Residence Inn August 2002 64
Atlanta Airport .............. Georgia Residence Inn September 2001 126
Atlanta/Buckhead ............ Georgia Residence Inn March 2002 136
Atlanta/Buckhead ............ Georgia Homewood Suites  January 2003 92
Atlanta/Cumberland .......... Georgia Residence Inn March 2002 130
Atlanta/Cumberland .......... Georgia Homewood Suites  January 2003 124
Atlanta/Peachtree ............ Georgia Homewood Suites ~ January 2003 92
Dunwoody .................. Georgia Residence Inn March 2002 144
Deerfield ................... linois Residence Inn August 2002 128
Lombard ................... [linois Residence Inn March 2002 144
Shreveport .................. Louisiana Residence Inn August 2002 72
Baltimore . .................. Maryland Homewood Suites  January 2003 147
Boston ..................... Massachusetts Residence Inn August 2002 96
Boston ............. ... Massachusetts Residence Inn September 2001 130
Detroit .................. ... Michigan Homewood Suites  January 2003 76
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Date

% State Franchise/Brand Acquired # of Suites
Southfield .................. Michigan Residence Inn March 2002 144
Jackson ........... ... L Mississippi Homewood Suites  January 2003 91
Jackson ........... .. ... Mississippi Residence Inn August 2002 120
St.Louis ................... Missouri Homewood Suites  January 2003 145
Chesterfield ................. Missouri Residence Inn March 2002 104
Galleria .................... Missouri Residence Inn March 2002 152
LasVegas .................. Nevada Residence Inn August 2002 192
SantaFe .................... New Mexico Residence Inn August 2002 120
Charlotte ................... North Carolina Residence Inn August 2002 91
Greensboro ................. North Carolina Residence Inn August 2002 128
Akron ....... ... .. oL Ohio Residence Inn August 2002 112
Cincinnati .................. Ohio Residence Inn September 2001 118
Columbus North ............. Ohio Residence Inn March 2002 96
DaytonNorth . ............... Ohio Residence Inn March 2002 64
Dayton South . ............... Ohio Residence Inn March 2002 96
Sharonville ................. Ohio Residence Inn March 2002 144
Portland .................... Oregon Homewood Suites  January 2003 123
Philadelphia/Malvern ......... Pennsylvania Homewood Suites  January 2003 123
Philadelphia ................. Pennsylvania Residence Inn August 2002 88
Columbia ................... South Carolina Residence Inn August 2002 128
Spartanburg .. ...... ... ..., South Carolina Residence Inn August 2002 88
Memphis ......... ... ... Tennessee Residence Inn August 2002 105
Dallas/Addison .............. Texas Homewood Suites  January 2003 120
Dallas/Las Colinas ........... Texas Homewood Suites  January 2003 136
Dallas/Plano ................ Texas Homewood Suites  January 2003 99
Dallas ............ ... ..., Texas Residence Inn September 2001 120
Houston .................... Texas Residence Inn September 2001 110
Lubbock ................... Texas Residence Inn August 2002 80
SaltLakeCity ............... Utah Homewood Suites ~ January 2003 98
Richmond .................. Virginia Homewood Suites  January 2003 123
Herndon.................... Virginia Homewood Suites  January 2003 109
Redmond ................... Washington Residence Inn January 2003 180
7.869

Apple Suites, Inc.

The Company entered into a merger agreement with Apple Suites on October 23, 2002, Effective January 31,
2003, Apple Suites merged with and into Hospitality Acquisition Company, the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiary. Apple Suites owned, either directly or through its subsidiaries, a total of 17 upper-end extended-stay
hotels throughout the United States, which comprised a total of 1,922 suites, and all of which are operated as part
of the Homewood Suites by Hilton franchise system. The merger did not change the management positions Mr.
Glade M. Knight, the Company’s Chairman, held with the Company prior to the merger nor did the board of
directors’ change as a result of the merger.
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Also in connection with this transaction, the Company terminated its advisory contract with Apple Suites
Advisors, Inc. (“ASA”) and became self-advised. To implement the termination of the advisory agreement, the
Company purchased ASA. The Company acquired all of Mr. Glade M. Knight’s stock in ASA instead of paying
a $6.48 million termination fee due ASA under the advisory agreement. Mr. Knight received a cash payment of
$2.0 million and a non-interest-bearing promissory note, due four years after the merger, in a principal amount of
$4.48 million. The Company recognized an expense related to this transaction of $5.5 million in 2003.

In addition, 1,272,000 newly created Series C convertible preferred shares were issued in exchange for
outstanding Series B convertible preferred shares. Holders of Series B convertible preferred shares would have
otherwise been entitled to receive 1,272,000 Units upon conversion of their Series B convertible preferred shares
in connection with the termination of the advisory agreement with ASA and termination of the brokerage service
agreement with Apple Suites Realty Group. The new Series C convertible preferred shares have a liquidation
preference comparable to the Series B convertible preferred shares, in that holders of Series C convertible
preferred shares receive no payments in a liquidation for their Series C convertible preferred shares until holders
of Units are paid in full for their Series A preferred shares. The Series C convertible preferred shares have the
same voting rights and rights to receive dividend distributions as if they had already been converted to common
shares. The company recognized expense related to this transaction of $10.2 million in the first quarter of 2003.

Management Agreements
Residence Inn Hotels

The Company’s Residence Inn hotels are subject to management agreements under which Residence Inn by
Marriott, Inc. (the “Manager”) manages the hotels, generally for an initial term of 15 to 20 years with renewal
terms at the option of the Manager of up to an additional 50 years. The agreements generally provide for payment
of base management fees, which are calculated annually as a percentage of sales, and incentive management fees
over a priority return (as defined in the management agreements). Incentive management fees (IMF) are currently
payable only if and to the extent there is sufficient cash flow from the hotels after consideration of qualifying
debt service and after consideration to a priority return on investment, including property improvements.
Amounts not currently payable are deferred and are payable in future years only if and to the extent there is
sufficient cash flow from future operations or upon sale or refinancing of the hotels after consideration to a
priority return to the Company (as defined in the management agreements), which is generally 12%. In the event
of early termination of the management agreements, the Manager will receive additional fees based on the
unexpired term and expected future base and incentive management fees. The Company has the option to
terminate the management agreements if specified performance thresholds are not satisfied.

Incentive fees are payable on a portfolio by portfolio basis for Residence Inn properties. The Company has three
portfolios of multiple hotels (Res I, Res If and Res III) with separate management agreements which are subject
to this calculation. The Company records incentive management fee exposure when it is considered probable that
these fees will be paid. The Company has recorded approximately $715,000 of deferred incentive management
fees on the Res III portfolio. The Company has not recorded any deferred incentive management fees for the Res
I and Res II portfolios. The Redmond hotel’s management agreement does not include deferred incentive
management fees; however, incentive fees are payable each year based on income in excess of a defined owner’s
priority. For December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company has incurred and paid approximately $308,407 and
$453,861, respectively, for incentive fees related to the Redmond property.
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The following table summarizes deferred incentive management fees (“DIMF”) under these management
agreements (dollars in millions).

IMF
Accumulated Amount accrued
DIMF Post- Total Post-acquisition Total  in Consolidated
Assumed  Acquisition IMF IMF Paid DIMF Balance Sheet

ResI ....... e $ 6.7 $69 $13.6 $0.0 $13.6 $0.0
ResIl ...... P 7.0 43 11.3 0.0 11.3 0.0
ResHI.............0 i, 0.0 12 1.2 0.5 0.7 0.7
Redmond ........................ 0.0 0.8 0.8 038 0.0 _0_9
Total ... $137 8132 $269 $1.3 $25.6 $0.7

No amounts of DIMF were recorded upon the acquisition of Res I and Res II as the fair value of these amounts
were not readily determinable and payment was not considered probable.

In addition to the base management and incentive management fees required by the management agreements, the
Company is also required to pay certain shared services which are generally provided on a central or regional
basis to all hotels in the Marriott International hotel system. Shared services include central training, advertising
and promotion, a national reservation system, computerized payroll and accounting services, public relations and
such additional services as needed which may be more efficiently performed on a centralized basis. Costs and
expenses incurred in providing such services are allocated among all domestic hotels managed, owned or leased
by Marriott International or its subsidiaries on a fair and equitable basis. For the year ended December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively, total expenses incurred under the Marriott agreements were $18.4 million and $17.4
million, or 11.3% and 11.6% of revenue provided by the Marriott managed properties.

Homewood Suites Hotels

The Company’s 17 Homewood Suites hotels are managed by Promus Hotels, Inc. (“Promus”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Hilton Hotels Corporation (“Hilton”) under the terms of separate management agreements, as part
of the Homewood Suites by Hilton franchise. The initial term is generally 15 years with no option to renew;
however, two hotel properties in this portfolio have renewal options of two five year periods each. The Company
has the option to terminate the management agreements if specified performance thresholds are not satisfied.
Promus charges fees for this function, which are calculated as a percentage of revenue. Incentive management
fees are calculated, for certain properties, on the basis of operating profit of the hotels. No incentive management
fees were earned in 2004 or 2003. Promus also charges a fee, calculated as a percentage of suite revenue, for
franchise licenses to operate as a Homewood Suites by Hilton and to participate in its reservation system. Total
expenses for franchise fees, management fees, advertising expenses and other reimbursable services were $6.0
million and $5.3 million, or 11.8% and 11.9% of revenue provided by the Hilton managed properties,
respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Related Party Transactions

The Company has significant transactions with related parties. These transactions cannot be construed to be
arm’s length and the results of the Company’s operations could be different if these transactions were conducted
with non-related parties.

The Company, through a wholly owned subsidiary, has an advisory agreement with Apple Hospitality Five
Advisors, Inc., (AFA), whereby the Company receives advisory fee revenue equal to 0.1% to 0.25% of total
equity contributions received by Apple Hospitality Five, Inc., plus certain reimbursable expenses in exchange for
Company personnel performing advisory and real estate acquisition due diligence for Apple Hospitality Five,
Inc. For the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company received advisory fee revenue in the amount
of $730,138 and $296,4335, respectively, under this agreement. AFA is 100% owned by Mr. Knight.
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The Company also provides support services to Apple Six Advisors, Inc. (A6A), Apple Hospitality Five Inc., and
Apple REIT Six, Inc. A6A provides day to day advisory and real estate due diligence services to Apple REIT
Six, Inc. A6A is 100% owned by Mr. Knight. Each of these companies have agreed to reimburse the Company
for its costs in providing these services. For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company has received
reimbursement of its costs totaling approximately $649,000. Mr. Knight is Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of Apple Hospitality Five, Inc. and Apple REIT Six, Inc. Additionally, the members of the Company’s
Board of Directors are the same as the members of the Board of Directors for Apple Hospitality Five, Inc. and
Apple REIT Six, Inc.

Results of Operations for Years 2004 and 2003

The Company continued to experience the effects of economic weakness in some of its markets and the effects of
closing rooms to complete its major renovation project for many of its hotels during the first quarter of 2004. As
a result, the Company’s financial results were lower than the same period in 2003. During the remainder of 2004,
the Company began to see improved economic conditions in some of its markets, and it substantially completed

its major renovation program. As a result, the Company’s results for the full year exceeded the same period in
2003.

Revenues

The Company’s principal source of revenue is hotel suite revenue. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003 the Company had suite revenue and other revenue of $207,735 and $5,907, and $189,600 and $6,206,
respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the hotels achieved average occupancy of 76%
and 74%, ADR of $95 and $91 and REVPAR of $72 and $67, respectively. ADR, or average daily rate, is
calculated as room revenue divided by number of rooms sold, and REVPAR, or revenue per available room, is
calculated as occupancy multiplied by ADR. The increase in REVPAR is a result of completing the renovation of
26 hotels in 2004 and improved economic conditions. During the renovation program, suites were taken out of
service. This program was completed in the middle of 2004.

Expenses

The Company’s hotel operating expenses totaled $128.8 million or 60% of revenue and $119.7 miilion or 61% of
revenue for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The improvement as a percentage of
revenue was a result of improved REVPAR.

Taxes, insurance and other expense for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $15.1 million or 7% of
revenue and $12.8 million or 7% of revenue, respectively. The increase is due substantially to increased
assessments and tax rates in various localities.

The Company’s general and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $2.5
million or 1% of revenue and $1.9 million or 1% of revenue, respectively. The increase is due substantially to
increased reporting and accounting requirements under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $24.6 million and $19.3 million,
respectively. Depreciation expense represents expense of the Company’s 66 hotels and related personal property,
as well as renovations. The increase in depreciation is due to the Company’s major renovation project in 2003
and 2004 and the acquisition of Apple Suites, Inc. in the first quarter of 2003.

Interest expense was $27.8 million and $25.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The increase is due to a $16 million line of credit entered into by the Company in 2004 with an
interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.5% and in 2003 the Company capitalized interest of $1.6 million associated with its
renovation program as compared to $496,000 in 2004.
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On November 10, 2004, the Company closed on a refinancing transaction associated with the Res 1I Partnership
debt. In association with this transaction, the Company incurred approximately $1.7 million in loan costs which
will be amortized over 10 years and recognized a loss on early extinguishment of debt of approximately $8.8
million, which includes a credit of $1.9 million related to the debt’s outstanding fair value adjustment.

The Company incurred approximately $15.9 million in expenses in 2003 related to the Apple Suites merger. The
expenses include approximately $10.2 million associated with the conversion of the series B convertible
preferred shares to series C convertible shares and $5.5 million associated with the termination of the advisory
agreement with ASA.

Results of Operations for Years 2003 and 2002
Revenues

The Company’s principal source of revenue is hotel suite revenue. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, the Company had suite revenue and other revenue of $189.6 million and $6.2 million and $102.9 million
and $3.3 million, respectively. The increase in revenues is attributable to the acquisition of the Redmond hotel;
the Company's merger with Apple Suites, Inc; and the revenues associated with a full year of operations for the
Company’s other hotel properties. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the hotels achieved average
occupancy of 74% and 78%, ADR of $91 and $92 and REVPAR of $67 and $71, respectively. ADR, or average
daily rate, is calculated as room revenue divided by number of rooms sold, and REVPAR, or revenue per
available room, is calculated as occupancy multiplied by ADR. The decrease in occupancy, ADR and REVPAR
for the years ended December 31, 2003 is related to the Company’s major renovation program at its hotel
properties and a general industry decline due to economic conditions throughout the U.S. During the renovations
program, suites are taken out of service while renovations are completed. The Company estimates approximately
54,000 room nights were out of service in 2003.

For the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had interest income of $840,681 and $1.3
million, respectively. Interest income represents earnings on excess cash, invested in short term money market
instruments.

Expenses

The Company’s hotel operating expenses totaled $50 million or 26% of suite revenue and $24.8 million or 24%
of suite revenue for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The reduction of REVPAR has
increased hotel operating expenses on a percentage of revenue basis due primarily to lower ADR and to fixed
costs associated with operating a hotel.

The Company’s general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 were $1.9
million or 1% of suite revenue and $1.9 million or 2% of suite revenue, respectively. This percentage decreased
as the Company’s asset base grew during 2003.

Taxes, insurance and other expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 was $12.8 million or 7% of
suite revenue and $6.6 million or 6% of suite revenue, respectively.

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 was $19.3 million and $7.6 million,
respectively. Depreciation expense for 2003 represents expense of the Company’s 66 hotels and related personal
property, as well as a full year of renovations; and expense for 2002 represents expense of 48 hotels and related
personal property owned at December 31, 2002. The Company’s capital expenditures increased from $6.8
million in 2002 to $48.6 million in 2003, as part of a major renovation program.

Interest expense was $25.5 million and $13.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
respectively. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2003, represents interest on the 8.08%, $53
million promissory note assumed in conjunction with the Crestline acquisition, interest expense on the refinance
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ihe Res I Partnership acquisition debt in the amount of $83 million at a fixed interest rate of 7.4%, interest
pense on the 8.85%, $130 million promissory note assumed in conjunction with the Res II Partnership
quisition, interest expense on the $20 million Redmond acquisition at 8.375% and Apple Suites debt of $76
illion at and average rate of 8.4%. Interest expense also includes approximately $2.5 million in amortization of
e Company’s fair value adjustment, and amortization of the premium on the Company’s note payable to Glade
1. Knight. Interest for the year ended December 31, 2002 represented the Crestline mortgage, Res I mortgages,
nd Res IT mortgages, as well as an adjustment for early extinguishment of debt related to the Res I mortgage.

{'he Company incurred approximately $15.9 million in expenses in 2003 related to the Apple Suites merger. The
expenses include approximately $10.2 million associated with the conversion of the series B convertible
preferred shares to series C convertible shares and $5.5 million associated with the termination of the advisory
agreement with ASA.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company capitalized interest of $1.6 million related to suites out
of service for renovations. No interest was capitalized in 2002.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Amount of Commitment expiring per period

Less than Qver 5§
Commercial Commitments (000’s) Totals 1-1year 2-3years 4-5years years
Total Debt Commitments (including approximately $206
million ininterest) .......... .. ... i, $573,618 $43,028 $68,136 $68,136 $394,318
Note payable-related party ........................ 4,480 — 4,480 —_ —
Total Commercial Commitments . ... ............ $578,098 $43,028 $72,616 $68,136 $394,318

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents totaled $13.1 million at December 31, 2004 and $17.3 million at December 31, 2003.
The Company plans to use this cash for distributions to shareholders, debt service and to fund general corporate
expenses.

Equity

Effective February 20, 2004, the Company instituted a dividend reinvestment plan to its shareholders. The plan
provides a convenient and cost effective way to increase shareholder investment in the Company by reinvesting
dividends to purchase additional Units of the Company. The uses of the proceeds from this plan may include
purchasing Units under the Company’s Unit Redemption Program, enhancing properties, satisfying financing
obligations and other expenses, increasing working capital, funding various corporate operations, and acquiring
extended-stay hotels. During the year ended December 31, 2004, approximately $680,751 Units were issued
under the dividend reinvestment plan representing proceeds to the Company of approximately $6.8 million,
under this plan.

During 2003, the Company instituted a Unit Redemption Program to provide limited interim liquidity to the
Company’s shareholders. Redemption of Units, when requested, is made quarterly on a first-come, first-serve
basis. Shareholders may request redemption of Units for a purchase price equal to the lesser of: (1) the purchase
price per unit that the shareholder actually paid for the unit (or the price that the shareholder actually paid for the
Apple Suites, Inc. common shares, if the Units were acquired through the exchange of Apple Suites, Inc.
common shares in the Company’s merger with Apple Suites, Inc.); or (2} $10.00 per unit. The Company reserves
the right to change the purchase price of redemptions, reject any request for redemption, or otherwise amend the
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terms of, suspend, or terminate the Unit Redemption Program. During the years ended December 31, 2004 ar
2003, the Company redeemed 882,773 and 875,357 Units in the amounts of $8,779,470 and $8,690,335,
respectively. The Company currently intends to redeem shares to the extent of proceeds received from the
dividend reinvestment plan.

Notes Payable

The aggregate amounts of principal payable under all of the Company’s promissory notes, for the five years
subsequent to December 31, 2004 are as follows:

2005 e e $ 15,859
2006 . L e 7,184
2007 o e 7,769
2008 . e 8,326
2000 9,079
Thereafter . ... e e 319,535
367,752

Fair Value Adjustment of Assumed Debt . ....... ... ... . ... ... .. ... 5,010
$372,762

The Company’s notes payable are secured by 64 of the Company’s hotels.

During 2004, the Company entered into a short-term credit facility and refinanced the debt associated with its
Res II portfolio. The short-term credit facility which expires in April 2005 and has an outstanding balance of $11
million at December 31, 2004 is secured by two properties and bears interest at LIBOR plus 2.5% per year.
Although there can be no assurances, the Company plans to refinance this credit facility in 2005.

On November 10, 2004, the Company closed on a refinancing transaction with Wachovia Bank, National
Association, as the lender. The refinancing involved 21 separate loans having an aggregate principal balance of
$135 million. The 21 promissory notes executed in connection with the refinancing are substantially similar in
that each provide a stated annual interest rate of 6.88%, each note matures on November 11, 2014 with an
aggregate balloon payment of approximately $111 million, and each note provides a payment of interest only in
monthly installments for the first 12 months, followed by amortized payments of principal and interest in
consecutive monthly installments thereafter.

In association with the above transaction, the Company incurred approximately $1.7 million in loan costs which
will be amortized over 10 years and recognized a loss on early extinguishment of debt of approximately $8.8
million.

Capital Requirements and Resources

The Company’s distribution policy is at the discretion of the Board of Directors and depends on several factors.
The distribution rate for the year ended December 31, 2003 was at a rate of $1.50 per Unit outstanding, including
a one time special dividend of $0.50 per Unit in January 2003. In July and October 2004, the Company declared
and paid a dividend to its shareholders of $0.20 per Unit outstanding. The tota} dividends declared and paid for
the year ended December 31, 2004 was $0.90, per Unit outstanding. The reduction to $0.20 per quarter in the
dividend rate was a result of the Company’s investment in its renovation program. The Company’s dividends
have historically included a return of capital. In 2004, 45% of the dividend was characterized as return of capital
and 55% ordinary income.
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The Company has ongoing capital commitments to fund its capital improvements. Through the Lessee, the
Company is required, under all management agreements with the Manager, to make available to the Lessee, for
the repair, replacement, refurbishing of furniture, fixtures, and equipment, an amount of at least 5% of gross
revenues provided that such amount may be used for its capital expenditures with respect to the hotels.

As aresult of the Company’s renovation program, the Company funded approximately $12.4 million in addition
to the 5% requirement in 2004. During the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company capitalized
approximately $22.2 million and $48.3 million, respectively, in capital improvements to the properties. Of the
amount capitalized during the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, approximately $16 million and $40
million, respectively, relates to the Company’s major renovation program and approximately $6 and $9 million,
respectively, relates to the Company’s normal furniture, fixtures and equipment expenditures. To fund its
renovation projects the Company obtained a short-term credit facility. It is anticipated cash from available credit
facilities and income from operations will be used to fund the Company’s ongoing debt service and capital
improvement projects. Distributions to shareholders will depend on income from operations. As a result there can
be no assurance that income from operations will be sufficient to fund distributions at historic levels.

The Company believes its liquidity and capital resources are adequate to meet its cash requirements for the
foreseeable future. Although there can be no assurance, the Company believes its investment in renovations and
improved economic conditions will allow the Company’s cash from operations to meet its planned distributions.

Impact of Inflation

Operators of hotels, in general, possess the ability to adjust room rates daily to reflect the effects of inflation.
Competitive pressures may, however, limit the operators’ ability to raise room rates. Currently the Company is
not experiencing any material impact from inflation.

Seasonality

The hotel industry historically has been seasonal in nature. Seasonal variations in occupancy at the hotels may
cause quarterly fluctuations in revenues. To the extent that cash flow from operations is insufficient during any
quarter, due to temporary or seasonal fluctuations in revenue, the Company expects to utilize cash on hand to
make distributions and required debt service.

The Company believes liquidity and capital resources are adequate to meet cash requirements for the foreseeable
future.

Critical Accounting Policies

The following contains a discussion of what the Company believes to be critical accounting policies. These items
should be read to gain a further understanding of the principles used to prepare the Company’s financial
statements. These principles include application of judgment; therefore, changes in judgments may have a
significant impact on the Company’s reported results of operations and financial condition.

Capitalization Policy

The Company considers expenditures to be capital in nature based on the following criteria: (1) for a single asset,
the cost must be at least $500, including all normal and necessary costs to place the asset in service, and the
useful life must be at least one year; (2) for group purchases of 10 or more identical assets, the unit cost for each
asset must be at least $50, with the aggregate cost of the group purchase being at least $750, including all normal
and necessary costs to place the asset in service, and the useful life must be at least one year; (3) for major repairs
to buildings, the repair must be at least $2,500 and the useful life of the asset must be substantially extended.
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Impairment Losses Policy

The Company records impairment losses on hotel properties used in operations if indicators of impairment are
present, and the sum of the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by the respective properties are
less than the properties’ carrying amounts. Impairment losses are measured as the difference between the asset’s
fair value less cost to sell, and its carrying value. No impairment losses have been recorded to date.

Investment Policy

The purchase price of real estate properties acquired is allocated to the various components, such as land,
buildings and improvements, intangible assets and in-place leases as appropriate, in accordance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards, commonly referred to as SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations”. The
purchase price is allocated based on the fair value of each component at the time of acquisition. Generally the
Company does not acquire real estate assets that have in-place leases as lease terms for hotel properties are very
short term in nature. The Company has not allocated any purchase price to intangible assets such as management
contracts and franchise agreements as such contracts are generally at current market rates and any other value
attributable to these contracts are not considered material.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities” (FIN 46) and subsequently revised FIN 46 in December 2003. Effective January 1,
2004, the Company adopted the provisions of FIN 46. The Company did not identify any variable interest entities
(VIEs) as defined by FIN 46.

On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Statement No. 123
(revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, which is a revision of FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation. Statement 123(R) supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, and amends FASB Statement No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows. Generally, the approach in
Statement 123 (R) is similar to the approach described in Statement 123. However, Statement 123 (R) requires
all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the
income statement based on their fair values. Pro forma disclosure is no longer an alternative. Statement 123 (R)
must be adopted no later than July 1, 2005 by the Company. The adoption of the statement is not anticipated to
have a material impact on the Company’s financial results.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The Company does not engage in transactions in derivative financial instruments or derivative commodity
instruments. As of December 31, 2004, the Company’s financial instruments were not exposed to significant
market risk due to foreign currency exchange risk, commodity price risk or equity price risk. The Company has
issued fixed interest rate notes payable to lenders under permanent financing arrangements. The Company
believes that the estimated fair value of the amounts outstanding under the fixed rate notes payable approximated
the outstanding principal amount of $372.8 million at December 31, 2004 which is included in the Company’s
financial statements. The following table summarizes the annual maturities and average interest rates.

Fai
(000’s) 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Total Marketl;alue
Maturities ............. $15,859 $7,184 $7,769 $8,326 $9,079 $319,535 $367,752  $372,762

Average Interest Rate .. .. 75% 76% 16% 1.6% 1.6% 7.6%
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
March 4, 2005

To the Shareholders
Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.

Management of Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. (the “Company”) is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting and for the assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting. As defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission, internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of the Company’s principal executive and principal
financial officers and effected by the Company’s Board of Directors, management and other personnel, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is supported by written policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the Company’s
transactions and dispositions of the Company’s assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles, and the receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of the Company’s management and directors; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In connection with the preparation of the Company’s annual consolidated financial statements, management has
undertaken an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO Framework). Management’s
assessment included an evaluation of the design of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and
testing of the operational effectiveness of those controls.

Based on this assessment, management has concluded that as of December 31, 2004, the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting was effective to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the Company’s consolidated
financial statements included in this report, have issued an attestation report on management’s assessment of
internal control over financial reporting, a copy of which appears on the next page of this annual report.

/s/ Glade M. Knight /s/ Bryan Peery
Glade M. Knight Bryan Peery
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Chief Accounting Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying “Report of Management on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting”, that Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in “Internal Control—Integrated
Framework™ issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO
criteria). Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal contro] over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO
criteria. Also, in our opinion, Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Apple Hospitality Two, Inc., as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2004, and our report dated March 4, 2005, expressed an unqualified
opinion thereon.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

Richmond, Virginia
March 4, 2005
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. (the “Company’’)
as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. Our audits also included the
financial statement schedule listed in the Index of Item 15. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all
material respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 4, 2005
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Richmond, Virginia
March 4, 2005
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Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except per share data)

December 31,2004 December 31, 2003

ASSETS
Investment in hotels, net of accumulated depreciation of $52,331 and
$27,705, TeSpectively . . ...t $636,206 $638,658
Cash and cashequivalents ........... ... ... ... ... ..., 13,118 17,296
Restricted cash-furniture, fixtures & equipment and other escrows . ... 7,259 33,738
Due from third party manager . ...............i i, 4,647 —
O heT AS8ELS . .ottt e e e 3,374 2,421
TOTAL ASSETS ... $664,604 $692,113
LIABILITIES
Notes payable-secured .. .....oovuiiii i $372,762 $362,763
Note payable-related party . ......... ... .. .o, 3,881 3,595
Accounts payable & accrued expenses . ............ i 1,816 3,648
Accounts payable-prior limited partners ............... ... ... ..., 8,501 8,815
Due to third party manager,net ................ .. ... ... ... — 2,371
Interestpayable ......... ... ... 1,191 1,280
Deferred incentive management fees payable ..................... 715 715
TOTAL LIABILITIES ...... ... . . i 388,866 383,193
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock, no par value, 15,000,000 authorized, none issued and
QUESIANAING . ..ottt e — —

Series A Preferred stock, no par value, authorized 200,000,000 shares;

40,442,616 and 40,644,638 shares outstanding, respectively ....... — —
Series B convertible preferred stock, no par value, authorized 240,000

shares; issued and outstanding — and — shares, respectively ... ... — —
Series C convertible preferred stock, no par value, authorized

1,272,000; issued and outstanding 1,272,000 and 1,272,000 shares,

TESPECHIVELY .« .ot 10,176 10,176
Common stock, no par value, authorized 200,000,000 shares;

outstanding 40,442,616 shares, and 40,644,638 shares,

respectively .. ... 347,376 349,406
Distributicns greater than netincome .................... ... .. (81,814) (50,662)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’EQUITY ............................ 275,738 308,920
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY .......... $664,604 $692,113

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31,2004 December 31,2003 December 31, 2002
REVENUES
SUILETEVENUE .. ..ottt e $207,735 $189,600 $102,896
Otherrevenue . . ...coovv et i 5,907 6,206 3,324
Total TEVENUES . . oottt ittt e e e 213,642 195,806 106,220
EXPENSES
Hotel operating expense ...................... 55,411 50,000 24,817
Hotel administrative expense . .. ................ 19,176 18,315 11,865
Sales and marketing . ......... ... ... ... ... .. 15,036 14,068 5,976
Utilities ... 10,207 9,735 4,554
Repair and maintenance . .. .................... 11,833 11,539 3,027
Franchisefees .......... ... .. 8,319 7,661 4,092
Managementfees .......... .. .. . il 5,429 5,070 3,094
Chain ServiCes . ........vuv i, 3,390 3,327 1,736
Taxes, insurance and other .................... 15,066 12,763 6,578
Merger expense-related party .................. — 15,914 —
General and administrative .................... 2,505 1,948 1,943
Depreciation of real-estate owned ............... 24,626 19,264 7,562
Total eXpenses .. ........ovieriiiiiiieiienn.. 170,998 169,604 75,244
Operatingincome ... ..........oveirnieinn... 42,644 26,202 30,976
Interestincome . ......... .. 382 841 1,293
Debt extinguishment costs .. ................... (8,803) — —
Interest €Xpense .......covviin it 27,774) (25,546) (13,402)
NELINCOME . o v o v v et e ettt e e e e $ 6,449 $ 1,497 $ 18,867
Basic and diluted income per common share .......... $ 0.15 $ 004 $ 0388
Weighted average shares outstanding ................ 41,728 41,421 21,557
Distributions paid per common share ................ $ 090 $ 150 $ 1.00

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Balance at December 31,
2001
Net proceeds from the sale of

common shares ...........

Common shares issued through
reinvestment of
distributions
Net income
Cash distributions declared to
shareholders ($1.00 per
share)

Balance at December 31,
2002
Common shares redeemed
Common shares issued through
merger with Apple Suites,
Inc.
Series B preferred convertible
shares issued through merger

with Apple Suites, Inc. .. ...

Series C preferred convertible
shares issued through merger

with Apple Suites, Inc. .. ...

Net income

Cash distributions declared to
shareholders ($1.25 per
share)

Balance at December 31,
2003

Common shares redeemed
Common shares issued through

dividend reinvestment . . . ...

Net income
Cash distributions declared to
shareholders ($0.90 per

share)

Balance at December 31,
2004

Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
(in thousands)

Series B Preferred  Series C Preferred

. . Distributions
Convertible Stock  Convertible Stock Common Stock Greater Total
Number of Number of Number of than Net  Shareholders’
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares  Amount income Equity
240 $ 24 — $ — 13,908 $122,889 §$ (2,452) $120,461
— — —_ — 15,507 137,807 — 137,807
— — — — 743 7,435 — 7,435
— — — — — — 18,867 18,867
— — — — — — (21,588) (21,588)
240 24 — — 30,158 268,131 (5,173) 262,982
— — — — (874) (8,832) — (8,832)
—-— — — — 11,361 90,107 — 90,107
(240) 24) — — -— — — 24)
— — 1,272 10,176 — — — 10,176
— — — — — — 1,497 1,497
— — — — — —_— (46,986) (46,986)
— — 1,272 10,176 40,645 349,406 (50,662) 308,920
— — — — (883) (8,779) — (8,779)
— — —_ — 681 6,749 _— 6,749
— — — — — — 6,449 6,449
_ _ _ — - — (37,601) (37,601)
$— 1,272 $10,176 40,443 $347,376  $(81,814) $275,738

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Cash flow from operating activities:

NetinCoOme ... ittt e e

Adjustments to reconcile to cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation . ....... ... it e

Non-cash portion of merger related expense

Net amortization of fair value adjustment to mortgage notes payable ...

Amortization of deferred financing costs ......................
Imputedinterest . . ........oooi i

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of amounts acquired/
assumed:
Due from/to third party manager

Other esCrows .. ...ttt
Other assets .. ......oiurinin it .
Account payable-affiliate ..........................
Interestpayable ....... .. ... i
Accrued eXPenSes ... ... ...t

Net cash provided by operating activities ..........

Cash flow from investing activities:

Decrease (increase) in cash restricted for capital improvements . . .

Net cash paid for hotel acquisitions ......................

Net cash paid for acquisition of Apple Suites, Inc. and Apple

Suites AAVISOTS ... ...
Decrease in prior shareholderescrow .....................
Capital Improvements .. ........cvveruteneeenunnenannn

(Increase) decrease in deposits on capital improvement projects . . .

Net cash used in investing activities ..............

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of commonstock . ................

Redemption of common stock
Proceeds from mortgage notes payable
Net proceeds from secured line of credit

Repayment of unsecured lineof credit ....................
Payment of financingcosts ............. ... ... ...
Capital lease obligations-principal amounts ................
Reduction in debt service escrow ............ .. ... 0.
Repayment of secured notes payable .....................

Cash distributions paid to shareholders

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ..
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . ...
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period . ................

Cash}and cash equivalents,endof period ................. ...

Supplemental information:

Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized . ..................

Non-cash transactions:
Other assets assumed in acquisitions
Escrows assumed in acquisitions

Assumption of mortgage notes payable ...................
Deposit for acquisitions used for acquisition of hotels . .......
Issuance of common stock ...... ... ... i
Issuance of Series Cshares . ............................
Liabilities assumed in acquisition .. ................ ... ...

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31,2004 December 31,2003 December 31, 2002
$ 6449 $ 1497 $ 18,867

24,626 19,264 7,562
—_ 13,576 —
(3,930) (2,506) (722)
143 124 32
— — 450
(7,024) 7,030 (2,014)
1,167 (201) (721
885 66 (1,268)
286 (18) (105)
(89) (39) 952
(2,146) (2,870) 970
20,367 35,923 24,003
11,379 2,399 (5,223)
— (12,550) (13,422)
— (15,341) —
8,815 — —
(22,174) (48,326) (6,803)
(259) 2,136 (2,809)
(2,239) (71,682) (28,257)
6,749 — 145,242
(8,779) (8,832) —_
135,000 — 83,000
11,000 — —
— (3,000) —
(1,722) — (1,224)
—_ — (368)
5,118 — —
(132,071) (6,391) (95,012)
(37,601) (54,244) (17,331)
(22,306) (72,467) 114,307
(4,178) (108,226) 110,053
17,296 125,522 15,469
$ 13,118 $ 17,296 $125,522
$ 27,863 $ 27,146 $ 13,402
$ — $ 1,779 5 —
$ — $ 1,131 $ 15934
$ — $ 102,363 $229,156
$ — $ — $ 35,000
$ — $ 90,107 $ -
$ — $ 10,200 $ —
$ — $ 4,136 $ 4,137



Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

Note 1

General Information and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. (the “Company”), a Virginia corporation, was formed on January 17, 2001, with the
first investor closing on May 1, 2001. The Company merged with Apple Suites, Inc. (Apple Suites) on January
31, 2003 and results of Apple Suites operations are included in Company results from February 1, 2003. The
consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated upon consolidation.

The Company owns 66 extended stay hotels and is operated as and has annually elected to be taxed as a real
estate investment trust (“REIT”). The REIT Modernization Act, effective January 1, 2001, permits a REIT to
establish taxable businesses to conduct certain previously disallowed business activities. The Company has
formed wholly-owned taxable REIT subsidiaries, and has leased all of its hotels to these subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Lessee”).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. The
fair market value of cash and cash equivalents approximate their carrying value. Cash equivalents are placed with
high credit quality institutions and the balances may, at times, exceed federal depository insurance limits.

Investments in hotels

The hotels are stated at cost, net of depreciation. Repair and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred while
significant improvements, renovations, and replacements are capitalized. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over estimated useful lives of the assets, which are 10-39 years for buildings and major
improvements and three to seven years for furniture and equipment.

The Company considers expenditures to be capital in nature based on the following criteria: (1) for a single asset,
the cost must be at least $500, including all normal and necessary costs to place the asset in service, and the
useful life must be at least one year; (2) for group purchases of 10 or more identical assets, the unit cost for each
asset must be at least $50, with the aggregate cost of the group purchase being at least $750, including all normal
and necessary costs to place the asset in service, and the useful life must be at least one year; (3) for major repairs
to buildings, the repair must be at least $2,500 and the useful life of the asset must be substantially extended.

The Company records impairment losses on hotel properties used in the operations if indicators of impairment
are present, and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by the respective properties are less than
their carrying amount. Impairment losses are measured as the difference between the asset’s fair value less cost
to sell, and its carrying value. No impairment losses have been recorded to date.

The purchase price of real estate properties acquired is allocated to the various components, such as land,
buildings and improvements, intangible assets and in-place leases as appropriate, in accordance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (““SFAS”) No. 141, “Business Combinations”. The purchase price is allocated
based on the fair value of each component at the time of acquisition. The Company generally does not acquire
real estate assets that have in-place leases as lease terms for hotel properties are very short term in nature. The
Company has not allocated any purchase price to intangible assets such as management contracts and franchise
agreements as such contracts are generally at current market rates and any other value attributable to these
contracts is not considered material.
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized as earned, which is generally defined as the date upon which a guest occupies a room or
utilizes the hotel’s services.

Stock Incentive Plans

The Company elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (APB 25) and related Interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options. As discussed in
Note 5, the alternative fair value accounting provided for under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” (“SFAS 123”) requires the use of option valuation
models that were not developed for use in valuing employee stock options. Under APB 25, because the exercise
price of the Company’s stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant and
other criteria are met, no compensation expense is recognized.

Comprehensive Income

The Company recorded no comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 or 2002.

Earnings per common share

Basic earnings per common share is computed based upon the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated after giving effect to all potential common shares that
were dilutive and outstanding for the year. Series C preferred convertible stock is included in basic and diluted
earnings per common share as these shares are considered common stock equivalents.

Income Taxes

As a REIT, the Company receives a deduction for its distributions to shareholders and is required to distribute
90% of its earnings and profits. Earnings and profits will differ from income reported for financial reporting
purposes primarily due to the differences for federal income tax purposes in the estimated useful lives used to
compute depreciation. The Company’s distributions are taxable to its shareholders to the extent the distribution is
characterized as ordinary income. The characterization of 2004 distributions of $0.90 per share for tax purposes
was 55% ordinary income and 45% return of capital, 2003 distributions of $1.50 per share for tax purposes was
84% ordinary income and 16% return of capital, and 2002 distributions of $1.00 per share for tax purposes was
61% ordinary income and 39% return of capital (unaudited).

The Lessee, as a taxable REIT subsidiary of the Company, is subject to federal and state income taxes. The
taxable REIT subsidiary incurred a financial reporting and taxable loss for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003, and 2002, and therefore did not have any federal tax expense. No operating loss benefit has been recorded
in the consolidated balance sheet since realization is uncertain. Total net operating loss carry-forward for federal
income tax purposes was approximately $22.3 million at December 31, 2004. There are no material differences
between the book and tax basis of the Company’s assets.

Sales and Marketing Costs

Sales and marketing costs are expensed when incurred. These costs represent the expense for franchise
advertising and reservation systems under the terms of the hotel management agreements and general and
administrative expenses that are directly attributable to advertising and promotion.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
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Reclassifications

During the third quarter of 2002, the Company recorded an extraordinary item of $273,789 related to the early
extinguishment of debt. The Company has reclassified this amount from an extraordinary item to interest expense
which is included in income from continuing operations, in accordance with SFAS Statement No. 145, which
became effective January 1, 2003 with retroactive application.

Summary of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities” (FIN 46) and subsequently revised FIN 46 in December 2003. Effective January 1,
2004, the Company adopted the provisions of FIN 46. The Company did not identify any variable interest entities
(VIEs) as defined by FIN 46.

On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Statement No. 123
(revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment”, which is a revision of FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation. Statement 123 (R) supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, and amends FASB Statement No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows. Generally, the approach in
Statement 123 (R) is similar to the approach described in Statement 123. However, Statement 123 (R) requires
all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the
income statement based on their fair values, Pro forma disclosure is no longer an alternative. Statement 123 (R)
must be adopted no later than July 1, 2005 by the Company. The adoption of the statement is not anticipated to
have a material impact on the Company’s financial results.

Note 2
Investment in Hotels

At December 31, 2004, the Company owned 66 hotels, with a total of 7,869 suites. Of the Company’s 66 hotels,
49 are Residence Inn by Marriott properties consisting of 5,947 suites, and 17 are Homewood Suites by Hilton
consisting of 1,922 suites.

Investment in hotels consisted of the following as of December 31:

2004 2003
Land . ... . $139,110,760  $139,098,160
Building and improvements .. .......... ... . i, 493 678,033 475,597,441
Furniture fixtures and equipment ..............c.ooouivuunen..n 55,748,667 51,667,967
688,537,460 666,363,568
Less: accumulated depreciation ............ . ... e, (52,330,994) (27,705,484)
Investmentinhotels,net .......... ... ... . . $636,206,466  $638,658,084

Acquisition of Apple Suites, Inc.

The Company entered into a merger agreement with Apple Suites on October 23, 2002. Effective January 31,
2003, Apple Suites merged with and into Hospitality Acquisition Company, the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiary (the “Merger”). Apple Suites owned, either directly or through its subsidiaries, a total of 17 upper-end
extended-stay hotels throughout the United States, which comprised a total of 1,922 suites, and all of which are
operated as part of the Homewood Suites by Hilton franchise system. Mr, Glade M. Knight, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, was also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Apple Suites, Inc.

Pursuant to the Merger, each Apple Suites common share, issued and outstanding immediately prior to the
effective time of the Merger, was converted into the right to receive either: (i) one Unit of the Company,
consisting of one common share of the Company and one Series A preferred share of the Company; or (ii) if the
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holder of an Apple Suites common share elected, $10.00 in cash per share, subject to a limit on the total amount
of cash to be paid in the Merger. As a result of the Merger, holders of Apple Suites common shares received a
total of 11,361,000 Units (valued at $8 per share for financial statements purposes) of the Company and
approximately $17.8 million in cash. The Company funded the cash portion of the Merger consideration with
available cash, and the Company assumed Apple Suites’ liabilities and paid certain merger costs.

In connection with the acquisition of Apple Suites, the Company paid total consideration of $185 million,
including assumption of liabilities and transaction costs. Apple Suites assets and liabilities were recorded at fair
value and no goodwill or intangible assets were recorded in connection with the transaction. The fair value of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed were as follows:

Investmentin hotels . ... ... . it $182,699,187
Cash ... 2,626,696
Restricted cash . ... ..o i 55,607
Other @SSETS . .ottt et e e e 4,961,959

Ot ASSLS vttt et e 190,343,449
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . ... ... ... il 6,276,203
Notes payable ...... ... .. . . e 77,624,712

Total liabilities . ... ... ... 83,900,915
Netassets acquired .. ..... ...t e $106,442 534

Also, in connection with this transaction, the Company terminated its advisory contract with Apple Suites
Advisors, Inc. (fASA”) and became self advised with all employees of ASA becoming employees of the
Company. To implement the termination of the advisory agreement, the Company purchased ASA. The
Company acquired all of Mr. Glade M. Knight’s stock in ASA instead of paying a $6.48 million termination fee
due ASA under the advisory agreement. Mr. Knight received a cash payment of $2 million and a non-interest-
bearing promissory note, due four years after the Merger, in a principal amount of $4.48 million. The Company
recognized an expense of $5.5 million related to this transaction during 2003. Also in connection with the Merger
and the termination of the advisory agreement with ASA, the Company’s outstanding Series B convertible
preferred shares were exchanged for 1,272,000 newly created Series C convertible preferred shares which have
the same voting and distribution rights as if they had already been converted into 1,272,000 common shares (see
Note 4). In connection with this transaction, the Company recognized expense of $10,152,000 in the consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Other Acquisition

Effective January 3, 2003, the Company acquired a Residence Inn by Marriott hotel in Redmond, Washington,
which contains 180 suites and was in operation when acquired. The hotel offers one and two room suites with the
amenities generally offered by upscale extended-stay hotels. It is located in a developed area near Seattle,
‘Washington.

The gross purchase price for the hotel was $32,550,000. This amount was satisfied at closing by cash payments

and other adjustments in the approximate amount of $12,550,000 and the assumption of existing secured debt
with an outstanding principal balance of $20,004,280.

Renovation Program

During 2003, the Company began a major renovation program at its hotel properties. This program included 26
hotels and was completed in 2004. During this program, suites were taken out of service while renovations were
completed. During the time pericd units were out of service, the Company capitalized interest, taxes and insurance
costs related to these units. During 2004 and 2003 the Company capitalized approximately $600,000 and $2.1
million, respectively, in costs associated with rooms out of service. Although this program included a specific group
of hotels, the Company will continue to renovate individual hotels as warranted from a cost benefit analysis.

33




Note 3
Notes Payable

The aggregate amounts of principal payable under all of the Company’s promissory notes, for the five years
subsequent to December 31, 2004 are as follows:

200 $ 15,859
2000 . 7,184
2007 e e 7,769
200 . 8,326
2000 e e 9,079
Thereafter . . e e 319,535
367,752

Fair Value Adjustment of Assumed Debt . ............... ... ... ... ... ... 5,010
$372,762

Notes payable consists of the following:

The Company has a note in the original principal amount of $82 million, secured by 15 of its hotels. The term of
the note is 10 years with a 25 year amortization. The note bears interest at the fixed rate of 7.4% per annum and
payments are made in monthly installments of principal and interest. The loan matures in October 2012 with an
aggregate balloon payment of approximately $67 million. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2004 and
2003 was approximately $80.5 million and $81.7 million, respectively.

Prior to November 10, 2004, the date of refinancing, the Company had a note encumbered by 23 hotel properties
with an annual interest rate of 8.85%. The note was payable in monthly instaliments of principal and interest and
had an outstanding balance on the date of refinancing of approximately $125 million. On November 10, 2004,
the Company closed on a refinancing of this note. The refinancing involved 21 separate loans having an
aggregate principal balance of $135 million. The 21 promissory notes are substantially similar in that each
provide a stated annual interest rate of 6.88%, each note matures on November 11, 2014 with an aggregate
balloon payment of approximately $111 million, and each note provides a payment of interest only in monthly
installments for the first 12 months, followed by amortized payments of principal and interest in consecutive
monthly installments thereafter. In association with this transaction, the Company incurred approximately $1.7
million in loan costs which will be amortized over 10 years using the effective interest method and recognized
debt extinguishment costs of approximately $8.8 million, which includes a credit of $1.9 million related to the
debt’s outstanding fair value adjustment.

The Company has a note in the amount of approximately $50 million, secured by 10 of its hotels. The note bears
a fixed interest rate of 8.08% per annum. The maturity date is January 2010, with a balloon payment of $35.4
million. The loan is payable in monthly installments including principal and interest. The outstanding balance at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 was approximately $47.7 million and $49.5 million, respectively.

The Company has a note in the amount of approximately $20 million, secured by its Redmond hotel. The note
provides for an applicable interest rate of 8.375% per year. The note requires consecutive monthly payments of
principal and interest in the amount of $163,348. The note matures in December 2025. The outstanding balance
at December 31, 2004 and 2003 was approximately $19.4 and $19.7 million, respectively.

In conjunction with the acquisition of Apple Suites, the Company assumed the following secured notes:

* A secured note with an original principal amount of $9.5 million that bears interest at 8.3% per annum
and is secured by two hotels. The note is amortized over 25 years and matures in January 2012.
Payments of principal and interest are made monthly. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2004
and 2003 was approximately $9.2 and $9.3 million, respectively.
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* A secured note with an original principal amount of $7.5 million that bears interest at 8.14% per annum
and is secured by one hotel. The note is amortized over 25 years and matures in September 2011.
Payments of principal and interest are made monthly. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2004
and 2003 was $7.2 and $7.3 million, respectively.

* A secured note with an original principal amount of $10.7 million that bears interest at 8.15% per
annum and is secured by one hotel. The note is amortized over 25 years and matures in June 2011.
Payments of principal and interest are made monthly. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2004
and 2003 was $10.2 and $10.4 million, respectively.

* A secured note with an original principal amount of $50 million that bears interest at 9% per annum and
is secured by 11 hotels. The note is amortized over 25 years and matures on September 2010. Payments
of principal and interest are made monthly. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2004 and 2003
was $47.6 and $48.2 million, respectively.

In 2004, the Company entered into a $16 million dollar secured line of credit. The line bears interest at LIBOR
(2.09% at December 31, 2004) plus 2.5%, matures in April 2005 and is secured by two hotels. As of
December 31, 2004, the Company had $11 million outstanding under the line of credit.

The Company has an unsecured promissory note due to its Chairman and CEQ. The note was part of the purchase
price of ASA. The principal and interest are due on January 31, 2007. The outstanding balance at December 31,
2004 and 2003 was $3.9 million and $3.6 million, respectively.

The outstanding balance of the Company’s notes payable at December 31, 2004 and 2003 approximates fair
market value at those dates.

Note 4
Shareholders’ Equity

The Company raised equity capital through a best efforts offering of Units by David Lerner Associates, Inc. (the
*Managing Dealer”). One Unit consists of one common share and one Series A preferred share of the Company.
Through the close of the offering on November 26, 2002, 30.1 million Units were sold netting the Company
$270,000,336. An additional 11.4 million Units were issued as part of the merger with Apple Suites.

Also in connection with the Apple Suites merger, all of the Company’s 240,000 Series B convertible preferred
shares were exchanged for 1,272,000 Series C convertible preferred shares of the Company. Expense related to
the issuance of the Series B convertible preferred shares was determined based on the fair value of the Series B
convertible preferred shares at conversion date in excess of amounts paid by these individuals. The fair value was
determined to be $8 per share at the date of the Merger. The holders of the Series B convertible preferred shares,
including Mr. Knight, would have otherwise been entitled to receive 1,272,000 Units upon conversion of the
Series B convertible preferred shares in connection with the termination of the Company’s advisory agreement
with ASA and the Company’s property acquisition/disposition agreement with Apple Suites Realty Group, Inc.
(“ASRG”). The new Series C convertible preferred shares have a liquidation preference comparable to the Series
B convertible preferred shares, in that holders of Series C convertible preferred shares will receive no payments
in liquidation for their Series C convertible preferred shares until holders of Units are paid in full for their Series
A preferred shares. The Series C convertible preferred shares have the same voting rights and rights to receive
dividend distributions as if they had already been converted to common shares.

The Series C convertible preferred shares will be convertible into Units upon and for 180 days following the
occurrence of either of the following events: (1) the Company transfers substantially all of the Company’s assets,
stock or business as a going concern, whether through exchange, merger, consolidation, lease, share exchange or
otherwise, other than a sale of assets in liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company’s business; or (2)
the Company lists the Company’s Units on a national securities exchange or quotation system or in any
established market. Upon the occurrence of either triggering event, each Series C convertible preferred share will
be convertible into one Unit, subject to adjustment to reflect stock dividends on, or split, subdivision or
combination of, the Company’s common shares.
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The Company’s articles of incorporation authorize issuance of up to 15 million additional preferred shares. No
preferred shares other than the Series A preferred shares and the Series B convertible preferred shares (discussed
above) have been issued. The Company believes that the authorization to issue additional preferred shares
benefits the Company and its shareholders by permitting flexibility in financing additional growth, giving the
Company additional financing options in corporate planning and in responding to developments in business,
including financing of additional acquisitions and other general corporate purposes. Having authorized preferred
shares available for issuance in the future gives the Company the ability to respond to future developments and
allows preferred shares to be issued without the expense and delay of a special shareholders’ meeting. At present,
the Company has no specific financing or acquisition plans involving the issuance of additional preferred shares
and the Company does not propose to fix the characteristics of any series of preferred shares in anticipation of
issuing preferred shares other than the Series A preferred shares and Series C convertible preferred shares. The
Company cannot now predict whether or to what extent, if any, additional preferred shares will be used or if so
used what the characteristics of a particular series may be. The voting rights and rights to distributions of the
holders of common shares will be subject to the prior rights of the holders of any subsequently-issued preferred
shares. Unless otherwise required by applicable law or regulation, the preferred shares would be issuable without
further authorization by holders of the common shares and on such terms and for such consideration as may be
determined by the board of directors. The preferred shares could be issued in one or more series having varying
voting rights, redemption and conversion features, distribution (including liquidating distribution) rights and
preferences, and other rights, including rights of approval of specified transactions. A series of preferred shares
could be given rights that are superior to rights of holders of common shares and a series having preferential
distribution rights could limit common share distributions and reduce the amount holders of common shares
would otherwise receive on dissolution.

Note 5
Stock Incentive Plans

The Company elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (APB 25) and related Interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options. The alternative
fair value accounting provided for under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” (“FASB
123”) requires use of option valuation models that were not developed for use in valuing employee stock options.
Under APB 25, because the exercise price of the Company’s stock options equals the market price of the
underlying stock on the date of grant and other criteria are met, no compensation expense is recognized.

For purposes of SFAS No. 123 pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to
expense over the options’ vesting period. As the options are exercisable within six months of the date of grant,
the full impact of the pro forma adjustment to net income is disclosed below. Amounts shown in thousands,
except per sharz data.

Year ended Year ended Year ended
m December 31,2004 December 31,2003 December 31, 2002
Net income, asreported ................ovivvn.... $6,449 $ 1,497 $18.867
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included in
reported net income, net of related tax effects . ... .. .. — 10,176 —
Deduct: Stock-based compensation expense determined
under fair value based methods for all awards, net of
related tax effects . ........ ... ... ... ... ... .... 33 10,233 8
Pro forma net income as if the fair value method had
been applied to all option grants . ................. $6,416 $ 1,440 $18,859
Earnings per common share: .......................
Basic and diluted-as reported .................. $ 0.15 $ 004 $ 088
Basic and diluted-proforma ................... $ 0.15 $ 0.03 $ 088




Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by FASB 123, under the fair value
method described in that statement. The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for grants in 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively: risk-free interest rates of 4.14 %, 4.06% and 5.04%; expected volatility of
approximately 0.272, 0.244 and 0.244, expected dividend yields of 8%, 8% and 10% and expected lives of
approximately 10 years. Fair value of options granted was $1.00, $0.72 and $0.47, respectively.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options
which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the
input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility.

Stock compensation expense included in the Statement of Operations for year ended December 31, 2003 was
$10,176,000, attributable to the conversion of all 240,000 Series B convertible preferred shares to Series C
convertible preferred shares. The amount of stock compensation expense that would have been recognized had
the fair value method prescribed under SFAS No. 123 been applied is also $10,176,000, as the Merger, defined in
Note 2, triggered the conversion of the Class B convertible preferred shares under a known conversion ratio. No
stock compensation expense was included in the Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2004.

On April 30, 2001, the Board of Directors approved a Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan (the
“Directors Plan”) whereby Directors, who are not employees of the Company or affiliates, automatically receive
options to purchase stock for five years from the adoption of the plan. Under the Directors Plan, the maximum
number of shares to be issued is equal to 45,000 plus 1.8% of the number of Units sold in excess of 3,157,895
Units. This plan currently relates to the initial public offering of 20,157,895 Units and the additional offering of
10,000,036 Units; therefore, the maximum number of shares to be issued under the Directors Plan is currently
531,001. The options expire 10 years from the date of grant.

On April 30, 2001, the Board of Directors approved an Incentive Stock Option Plan (the “Incentive Plan™)
whereby incentive awards may be granted to certain employees of the Company or affiliates. Under the Incentive
Plan, the maximum number of Units to be issued is equal to 35,000 plus 4.625% of the number of shares sold in
the initial offering in excess of 3,157,895 plus 4.4% of the total number of Units sold in additional offerings. This
plan also currently relates to the initial public offering of 20,157,895 Units and the additional offering of
10,000,036 Units; therefore, the maximum number of Units that can be issued under the Incentive Plan is
currently 1,261,252.

Both plans generally provide, among other things, that options be granted at exercise prices not lower than the
market value of the Units on the date of grant. Under the Incentive Plan, at the earliest, options become
exercisable at the date of grant. The optionee has up to 10 years from the date on which the options first become
exercisable to exercise the options. In 2004, the Company granted 33,372 options to purchase shares under the
Directors Plan and granted no options under the Incentive Plan. In 2003, the Company granted 33,212 options to
purchase shares under the Directors Plan and granted no options under the Incentive Plan. Also, as part of the
Merger, the Company converted 45,888 options granted under the Apple Suites Director’s Plan to Company
options with the same terms and agreements. In 2002, the Company granted 16,128 options to purchase shares
under the Directors Plan and granted no options under the Incentive Plan. Activity in the Company’s share option
plan during 2004, 2003 and 2002 is summarized in the following table:

2004 2003 2002
QOutstanding, beginning of year: . .................... ... ...... 121,820 42,720 26,592
Granted .. ...t s 33,372 79,100 16,128
Exercised ....... ... — — —
Expiredorcanceled ............. ... ... ... o — — —
Outstanding, endof year: .......... ... ... .. i, 155,192 121,820 42,720
Exercisable,endof year: ......... ... ... ... i il 155,192 121,820 42,720
The weighted-average exercise price: ....... ... ... ... ... .... 9.93 9.91 9.74

37



Note 6
Management Agreements
Residence Inn Hotels

The Company’s Residence Inn hotels are subject to management agreements under which Residence Inn by
Marriott, Inc. (the “Manager”’) manages the hotels, generally for an initial term of 15 to 20 years with renewal
terms at the option of the Manager of up to an additional 50 years. The agreements generally provide for payment
of base management fees, which are calculated annually as a percentage of sales, and incentive management fees
over a priority return (as defined in the management agreements). Incentive management fees (IMF) are currently
payable only if and to the extent there is sufficient cash flow from the hotels after consideration of qualifying
debt service and after consideration to a priority return on investment, including property improvements.
Amounts not currently payable are deferred and are payable in future years only if and to the extent there is
sufficient cash flow from future operations or upon sale or refinancing of the hotels after consideration to a
priority return to the Company (as defined in the management agreements), which is generally 12%. In the event
of early termination of the management agreements, the Manager will receive additional fees based on the
unexpired term and expected future base and incentive management fees. The Company has the option to
terminate the management agreements if specified performance thresholds are not satisfied.

Incentive fees are payable on a portfolio by portfolio basis for Residence Inn properties. The Company has three
portfolios of multiple hotels with separate management agreements which are subject to this calculation. The
Company records incentive management fee exposure when it is considered probable that these fees will be paid,
which is generally when they become payable. The Company has recorded approximately $715,000 of deferred
incentive management fees on the Res III portfolio. The Company has not recorded any deferred incentive
management fees for the Res I and Res II portfolios. The Redmond hotel’s management agreement does not
include deferred incentive management fees; however, incentive fees are payable each year based on income in
excess of a defined owner’s priority. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company has
incurred and paid approximately $308,407 and $453,861, respectively, for incentive fees related to the Redmond

property.

The Company acquired its Residence Inn hotels in separate transactions; (Res I — purchased February 2002,

Res II - purchased in August 2002, Res III — purchased September 2001; and Redmond purchased January
2003). In the Res I and Res II purchases, the Company assumed the amended and restated management
agreements in effect with the Manager by the prior owner and assumed deferred incentive management fees
totaling $6.7 million and $7.0 million, respectively, at the date of the respective acquisitions. Additionally, the
Company assumed the cost basis of $187.0 million and $243.0 million for Res I and Res II, respectively, and the
holding period of the prior owner for purposes of calculating the priority returns upon sale of the properties. The
Company paid approximately $133.0 million and $160.0 million for Res I and Res II, respectively.

The following table summarizes deferred incentive management fees (“DIMF”) under these management
agreements (dollars in millions).

IMF
Accumulated Amount accrued
DIMF Post- Total Post-acquisition Total  in Consolidated
Assumed  Acquisition IMF IMF Paid DIMF Balance Sheet

ResI ... . i $ 6.7 $ 6.9 $13.6 $0.0 $13.6 $0.0
ResIl ............. .. ... ... .... 7.0 43 11.3 0.0 11.3 0.0
ResIIl............... ... .. ... 0.0 1.2 1.2 0.5 0.7 0.7
Redmond ........................ 0.0 0.8 0.8 08 0.0 00
Total ..o $13.7  $132  $269 $1.3 $25.6 $0.7

38




No amounts of DIMF were recorded upon the acquisition of Res I and Res II as the fair value of these amounts
were not readily determinable and payment was not considered probable.

In addition to the base management and incentive management fees required by the management agreements, the
Company is also required to pay certain shared services which are generally provided on a central or regional
basis to all hotels in the Marriott International hotel system. Shared services include central training, advertising
and promotion, a national reservation system, computerized payroll and accounting services, public relations and
such additional services as needed which may be more efficiently performed on a centralized basis. Costs and
expenses incurred in providing such services are allocated among all domestic hotels managed, owned or leased
by Marriott International or its subsidiaries on a fair and equitable basis. For the year ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively, total expenses incurred under the Marriott agreements were $18.4 million, $17.4
million, and $11.5 million, respectively.

Homewood Suites Hotels

The Company’s 17 Homewood Suites hotels are managed by Promus Hotels, Inc. (“Promus™), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Hilton Hotels Corporation (*Hilton™) under the terms of separate management agreements, as part
of the Homewood Suites by Hilton franchise. The initial term is generally 15 years with no option to renew;
however, two hotel properties in this portfolio have renewal options of two five year periods each. The Company
has the option to terminate the management agreements if specified performance thresholds are not satisfied.
Promus charges fees for this management function, which are calculated as a percentage of revenue. Incentive
management fees are calculated, for certain properties, on the basis of operating profit of the hotels. No incentive
management fees were earned in 2004 or 2003. Promus also charges a fee, calculated as a percentage of suite
revenue, for franchise licenses to operate as a Homewood Suites by Hilton and to participate in its reservation
system. Total expenses for franchise fees, management fees, advertising expenses and other reimbursable
services were $6.0 million and $5.3 million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Note 7
Related Parties

Prior to January 31, 2003, the Company was externally-advised and had contracted with ASA to advise and
provide day to day management services to the Company. In accordance with the contract, the Company paid
ASA a fee equal to .1% to .25% of total equity contributions received by the Company in addition to certain
reimbursable expenses. Concurrent with the Company’s merger with Apple Suites on January 31, 2003, the
Company terminated its advisory contract with ASA and became self-advised. To implement the termination of
the advisory agreement, the Company purchased ASA. The Company acquired all of Mr. Glade M. Knight’s
stock in ASA instead of paying a $6.48 million termination fee due ASA under the advisory agreement. Mr.
Knight received a cash payment of $2 million and a non-interest-bearing promissory note, due four years after
the Merger, in a principal amount of $4.48 million. The Company recognized an expense of approximately $5.5
million related to this transaction during 2003. Also in connection with the Company’s Merger and the
termination of the advisory agreement with ASA, the Company’s outstanding Series B convertible preferred
shares were exchanged for 1,272,000 newly created Series C convertible preferred shares which have the same
voting and dividend rights as if they had already been converted into 1,272,000 common shares (see note 2).

During 2003, the Company entered into an advisory agreement with Apple Hospitality Five Advisors, Inc.
whereby the Company receives advisory fee revenue equal to .1% to .25% of total equity contributions received
by Apple Hospitality Five, Inc., plus certain reimbursable expenses in exchange for providing day to day
advisory and real estate due diligence services for Apple Hospitality Five, Inc. The Company received advisory
fee revenue in the amount of $730,138 and $296,435, respectively, under this agreement for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003. -

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had contracted with ASRG to provide brokerage services for the
acquisition and disposition of the Company’s real estate assets. In accordance with the contract, ASRG was paid
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a fee of 2% of the gross purchase price of any acquisitions or gross sale price of any dispositions of real estate
investments, subject to certain conditions. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, ASRG earned
$651,000 and $5,866,784, respectively, under this agreement. ASRG is owned by Mr. Glade M. Knight, the
Company’s Chairman. Concurrent with the Company’s merger with Apple Suites on January 31, 2003, the
Company’s agreement with ASRG was terminated.

The Company also provides support services to Apple Six Advisors, Inc. (A6A), Apple Hospitality Five Inc., and
Apple REIT Six, Inc. A6A provides day to day advisory and real estate due diligence services to Apple REIT
Six, Inc. A6A is 100% owned by Mr. Knight. Each of these companies have agreed to reimburse the Company
for its costs in providing these services. For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company has received
reimbursement of its costs totaling approximately $649,000.

Mr. Knight is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Apple Hospitality Five, Inc. and Apple REIT Six, Inc.
and of Cornerstone Realty Income Trust, Inc., an apartment REIT. Additionally, the Company’s Board of
Directors is the same as Apple Hospitality Five, Inc. and Apple REIT Six, Inc.

Note 8
Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with SFAS
128 (in thousands):

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31,2004 December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002

Numerator:
Net income and numerator for basic and diluted

CAIMUIES .« . ot ot e vttt ettt $ 6,449 $ 1,497 $18,867
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per share-weighted-

averageshares ........... ... ... ... .. oL 41,728 41,421 21,557
Effect of dilutive securities ........................ 1 1 1
Denominator for diluted earnings per share-adjusted

weighted-average shares and assumed conversions . .. 41,729 41,422 21,558
Basic and Diluted earnings per common share ......... $ 0.15 $ 0.04 $ 0.88

Note 9
Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

The following is a summary of quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
December 31, 2003, in thousands, except per share data:

Second Third Fourth
20ﬁ First Quarter  Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenues . ........ ... $ 49,480 $54,634 $58,775 $50,753
Netincome (10S8) . ..ottt e $ 2,086 $ 5122 $6,751 $(7,510)
Basic and diluted earnings per common share ................. $ 005 $ 012 $ 0.16 $ (0.18)
Distributions paid pershare .. ............... ... ... ... ..... $ 025 § 025 $ 020 $ 020

Second Third Fourth
20£ First Quarter Quarter  Quarter  Quarter
Revenues ......... ... . . i $ 43,445  $50,199 $52,743 $49,419
Netincome (1088) . . ...t e $(10,779) $ 5,483 $ 5,076 $ 1,717
Basic and diluted earnings per common share ................. $ 028 $ 013 $ 012 $ 0.04
Distributions paidpershare ........... ... ... ... ... ... ..... $ 075 $ 025 $ 025 $ 0.25
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Note 10
Pro Forma Information (unaudited)

The following pro forma information for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 is presented as if the
acquisition of Apple Suites, Inc. occurred on January 1, 2002. The pro forma information does not purport to
represent what the Company’s results of operations would actually have been if such transactions, in fact, had
occurred on January 1, 2003, nor does it purport to represent the results of operations for future periods. Merger
related costs associated with the Apple Suites merger have been excluded from the pro forma results, as they are
associated with the merger and are non-recurring operating expenses. Amounts shown in thousands, except per
share data.

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002

Hotel revenues .. ...t $199,526 $214,862
NetinCOome . ..ottt $ 17,402 $ 28,921
Net income per share basic and diluted .................... $ 038 $ 084
Note 11
Industry Segments

The Company owns extended-stay hotel properties throughout the United States that generate rental and other
property related income. The Company separately evaluates the performance of each of its hotel properties.
However, because each of the hotel properties has similar economic characteristics, facilities, and services, the
properties have been aggregated into a single segment. All segment disclosure is included in or can be derived
from the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Note 12
Subsequent Events

In January 2005, the Company declared and distributed to its shareholders dividends in the amount of $8.3
million ($0.20 per share).

In January 2005, the Company redeemed 234,559 Units in the amount of $2.3 million.

In January 2005, through the Company’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan, 234,402 Units totaling $2.3 million were
reinvested.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreement with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Senior management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this
report. Based on this evaluation process, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded
that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective and that there have been no changes in the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the last fiscal quarter that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting. Since that evaluation process was completed, there have been no significant changes in internal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls.

See Item 8§ for the Company’s Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

For information with respect to the Company’s directors and executive officers, see the information in the
Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which information is hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

For information with respect to the Company’s executive compensation, see the information in the Company’s
Proxy Statement for its 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which information is hereby incorporated herein
by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

For information with respect to the Company’s security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management
related shareholder matters, see the information in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2005 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders, which information is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

For information with respect to the Company’s certain relationships and related transactions, see the information
in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which information is hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

For information with respect to the Company’s principal accountant fees and services, see the information in the
Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which information is hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

For information with respect to the Company’s pre-approval policies for audit and non-audit services, see the

information in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which information
is hereby incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a)

1.

Financial Statements of Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.
Report of Management on Internal Control Gver Financial Reporting

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting—Ermst & Young LLP

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm—Emst & Young LLP
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

These financial statements are set forth in Item 8 of this report and are hereby incorporated by
reference.

Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule III—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation (Included at the end of this Part IV of this
report.)

Exhibits

Incorporated herein by reference are the exhibits listed under “Exhibits Index” to this Report available
at wWww.sec.gov.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ApPLE HosprtaLITY Two, INC.

By: /s/ GLADE M. KNIGHT Date: March 9, 2005

Glade M. Knight,
Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer

By: /s/ Bryan Peery Date: March 9, 2005

Bryan Peery,
Chief Accounting Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

By: /s/ Glade M. Knight Date: March 9, 2005
Glade M. Knight, Director

By: /s/ Lisa B. Kemn Date: March 9, 2005

Lisa B. Kern, Director

By: /s/ Bruce H. Matson Date: March 9, 2005

Bruce H. Matson, Director

By: /s/ Michael S. Waters Date: March 9, 2005
Michael S. Waters, Director

By: /s/ Robert M. Wily Date: March 9, 2005
Robert M. Wily, Director
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